Public Document Pack

Barbican Estate Residents Consultation
Committee

Date:
Time:

Venue:

Members:

Enquiries

MONDAY, 21 MAY 2018
6.30 pm

COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Christopher Makin — Chairman
Jim Davies — Deputy Chairman
Graham Wallace — Deputy
Chairman

Gordon Griffiths - Bunyan Court
Fiona Lean - Ben Jonson House
Jane Smith - Barbican Association
John Taysum - Bryer Court

Janet Wells - John Trundle House
Averil Baldwin - Thomas More
House

John Tomlinson, Deputy

Graham Wallace - Andrewes House
(Deputy Chairman)

Mary Bonar - Wallside

Fred Rodgers - Breton House
David Andrew Graves
(Alderman)Seddon House

:  Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Nancy Christopher Makin - Speed House
(Chairman)

Nancy Chessum - Andrewes House
Sandy Wilson - Shakespeare Tower
David Kirkby - Defoe House

Jim Davies - Mountjoy House (Deputy
Chairman)

Professor Michael Swash - Willoughby
House

David Lawrence - Lauderdale Tower
Mark Bostock

Heather Hawker - Speed House
Vivian Fowle - Gilbert House

James Wilson Undy - Gilbert House

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



AGENDA

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES

To agree the minutes of the Barbican Residents’ Consultation Committee (RCC) held

on 5 March 2018.

'YOU SAID; WE DID' - OUTSTANDING ACTIONS LIST

PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.

SLA REVIEW

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE TO ROOFS AND BALCONIES

Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services to be heard.

CAR PARK CHARGING POLICY

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.

FIRE SAFETY UPDATE

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 8)

For Information
(Pages 9 - 10)

For Information
(Pages 11 - 14)

For Information
(Pages 15 - 30)

For Information

For Information
(Pages 31 - 68)

For Information
(Pages 69 - 116)



10.

11.

12.

13.

UPDATE REPORT

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services

For Information
(Pages 117 - 126)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
DATE OF NEXT MEETING

For Decision



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS CONSULTATION COMMITTEE

Monday, 5 March 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee

held at Guildhall at 6.30 pm

Present

Members:
Christopher Makin - Speed House (Chairman)
Jim Davies - Mountjoy House (Deputy Chairman)

Graham Wallace - Andrewes House (Deputy Chairman)

Gordon Griffiths - Bunyan Court
Fiona Lean - Ben Jonson House
Jane Smith - Barbican Association
Averil Baldwin - Thomas More House
John Tomlinson - Cromwell Tower
Joanne Rodgers - Breton House
David Graves — Seddon House
Natalie Roberson - Andrewes House
Sandy Wilson - Shakespeare Tower
David Kirkby - Defoe House
Professor Michael Swash - Willoughby House
David Lawrence - Lauderdale Tower
Mark Bostock — Frobisher Crescent
Francis Pugh - Gilbert House
Heather Hawker - Speed House

In attendance — Ted Reilly (to take questions on the Underfloor Heating Working Party at

agenda item 11

Officers:

Paul Murtagh Assistant, Director, Barbican and Property

Helen Davinson Service, Community and Children’s
Services

Michael Bennett Community and Children’s Services

Anne Mason Community and Children’s Services

Mike Saunders Community and Children’s Services

Julie Mayer Town Clerk’s

In attendance:

Randall Anderson Ward Member, Aldersgate and BRC
Member

Mary Durcan Ward Member, Cripplegate and BRC
Member

1.  APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Fred Rodgers, represented by Joanna Rodgers
and Lorne Whiteway, represented by Francis Pugh and John Taysum. Whilst
not a Member of the RCC, the BRC Chairman, Ann Holmes generally attends

Page 1



as an observer. This evening, Mrs Holmes was attending a Committee of
which she was a full Member and therefore had submitted apologies.

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

MINUTES

The minutes of the RCC meeting held on 27 November 2017 were approved as
a correct record, subject to Gordon Griffiths’ apologies being recorded at this
meeting.

The minutes of the RCC’s AGM held on 29 January 2018 were approved as a
correct record, subject to an amendment stating that a Member had asked for a
map or plan of the Barbican Estate to accompany its Terms of Reference.

Matters arising:

Members noted that the information requested in respect of the potential City of
London School for Girls project in Thomas Moore car park had been passed to
the Chairman of the Barbican Association, who was present at this meeting and
agreed to circulate to RCC Members. Members noted that the car park and
stores charging report was due at the RCC/BRC, once the stores planning
application had been heard, and this would include the impact on the financial
position of the accounts. Members of the RCC were keen to be more engaged
in this which was currently the remit of the Car Park Charging Working Party.

The Town Clerk agreed to canvass Members for preferred dates, in June this
year, for an Extraordinary General Meeting of the RCC. Members favoured
holding this on a Monday evening.

'YOU SAID; WE DID' - ACTIONS LIST FEBRUARY 2018

Members received the “You Said: We Did’ Outstanding Actions List. A question
in respect of VFM had been answered in ‘questions in advance’, which had
been circulated before the meeting and tabled for Members.

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (SLA) QUARTERLY REVIEW OCTOBER -
DECEMBER 2017

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of service level agreements and key performance indicators
(KPIs). In response to a question about the lighting at the edge of the podium,
Members noted that this was the responsibility of the Department of the Built
Environment and in the process of being upgraded

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of sales and lettings approved by officers since the last
meeting of the RCC. Members noted that this was reported to the BRC as

Page 2



approval was granted under delegated authority, in accordance with standing
orders.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

FIRE SAFETY UPDATE

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services which provided Members with an update on progress made in relation
to fire safety matters since the last reports submitted in September and
November 2017. Members noted that this report was also being scrutinised by
the City Corporation’s Audit and Risk Management Committee the following
day.

Members noted that the City Corporation had conducted more detailed risk
assessments at Level 3, rather than 1, although there was no legal requirement
to do so. There had been concern expressed at a deficiency notice issued in
respect of Willoughby House, but officers reassured Members that they had
challenged this as it was incorrect, and the deficiency was no longer valid.
Officers agreed to share this reason with the House Group representative, on
order for him to share it with Willoughby House Group Members.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE TO ROOFS/BALCONIES FOLLOWING
WATER PENETRATION

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of progress made by the Working Party in relation to the
City Corporation’s approach to dealing with repairs and maintenance to roofs
and balconies to the residential units on the Barbican Estate.

In respect of Mountjoy House’s re-roofing project, officers advised that this had
been delayed due to last week’s adverse weather but works would start this
week. Furthermore, leaseholders would not be charged, as the whole roof has
failed, and be kept updated on progress.

The barrel roofs at Andrewes House would be cleaned to ascertain their
condition and had been graded as ‘Condition D’, pending the outcome of the
cleaning.

Members suggested that the chart at pages 50-52 be assessed by the Service
Charges Working Group.

The representative for Frobisher Crescent was concerned about the amount of
litter on the roof. Officers advised that, whilst this has not been reported by the
Inspector, maintenance workers would resolve this.

Members accepted that there had not been a high degree of expenditure on

roof repairs, when compared to the cost of maintaining warranties, but better
comparisons were now available.

Page 3



10.

11.

The Assistant Director agreed to provide Members with a description of the
various roof types set out on page 50.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

LEASE ENFORCEMENT
Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of a protocol to deal with breaches of leases.

Members made the following comments, for consideration by Members of the
BRC:

¢ Noise transfer in the Barbican Estate is not always straightforward so
complaint about noise transfer should be interpreted sensibly.

e The Protocol should specify ‘non-carpeted’ floors, not ‘wooden’ floors.
Members noted that there was no mention of underlay in the Lease.

e There should be no restrictions on the relationship of the complainant to
any pet owner(s), as the nuisance could be wider than the immediate
neighbours.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

CONCRETE REPAIRS TO THE BARBICAN ESTATE

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of concrete repairs to the Barbican Estate which would be
presented to various City Corporation Committees over the next month,
including the Barbican Residential Committee.

The report was before the various Committees as there had been a programme
delay to the requirement to retender works and the tenders had been more than
the approved estimates. Members noted that there was some reluctance from
contractors to tender for works on the Barbican estate, very possibly on
account of its unique design and Listed Building status.

Officers confirmed that there would be proportionate additional costs for those
who had purchased car parking bays and, following budget approval, there
would be a full consultation on charges.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

UPDATE REPORT

Members received the regular update report of the Director of Community and
Children’s Services.

Members noted a technical delay to the electronic vehicle charging points pilot

and the launch date had slipped from March to May. The Working Party had
been updated and was due to meet on 12 April to review the reasoning for the

Page 4



12.

delays. Some Members expressed disappointment about this delay. Officers
agreed to provide information in respect of kw usage for each of the blocks.

Officers were very pleased at the joint working evidenced by the working party
reports on this agenda and thanked Members for their co-operation.

Members welcomed the new Chairman of the Underfloor Heating Working
Party; Mrs Mary Durcan, who was a Member of the BRC and a Ward Member
for Cripplegate. Members noted that many of the quick wins were not reliant on
cost and proposed enhancements would give greater control to the engineers
and the estate office. A Member suggested that the last email broadcast about
underfloor heating was unduly negative. Finally, Members welcomed the
introduction of KPI's, once the work of the Underfloor Heating Working Party
had delivered.

Officers advised that a survey on possible works to Speed garden was currently
being reviewed by the Gardens Advisory Group. Members noted that there had
been a wide range of responses which were being analysed.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMITTEE

Members received a report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor, in respect of
potential conflicts of interest on the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC).
Members had been emailed the draft minutes from this meeting, which had
been inquorate and minuted as such. The Town Clerk confirmed that this
procedure was in order in circumstances where a quorum was almost
achieved, and Members had agreed to hold an inquorate meeting. The draft
minutes had been shared with RCC Members, in keeping with transparency
and to inform this discussion. The report was presented by Alderman David
Graves, who is a Member of the RCC and the Standards Committee and
Alderman for the Ward of Cripplegate.

During the debate, the following points were noted:

Whilst the current procedures were legal, the report stated that Members (of the
Standards Committee) might wish to consider whether current arrangements
might give rise to a negative public perception that conflicts of interest could
occur. Members of the Standards Committee particularly noted that, at the two
most recent quorate meetings of the BRC, the resident Members were in the
majority. However, Members of the RCC were reminded that the Barbican
Residential Committee had been carrying 5 vacancies for non-resident
Members and that (without a dispensation from the Standards Committee) no
Members may speak to or vote upon a matter in which they have a pecuniary
interest.

Prior to the submission of the Standards Committee report, the City of London
Corporation’s Policy and Resources Committee had requested a strategic

Page 5



13.

review of housing governance in the City of London Corporation affecting both
the Corporation's Housing Revenue Account Estates in Central London and the
Barbican. Members noted that the City Corporation had an ambition to more
than double the size of its HRA stock by 2025. This ambition, combined with
the concerns expressed by the Standards Committee, meant (in the Alderman's
opinion) that Members should proceed on the assumption that a change in
current arrangements was likely over the next 2-3 years.

Members discussed the context for the creation of the RCC in 2003, which was
decided by ballot, concerning the future management of the Barbican Estate
with options which included management of the Estate by the residents
themselves; no change; and the establishment of the RCC. Members asked if
they could see any supporting documentation. A Member recalled that
residents had also petitioned the House of Commons to enable resident
Members to sit on a Committee overseeing the affairs of the Barbican Estate.
Members asked for clarity as to whether the Localism Act of 2011 and the
Standards Regime had overridden this? It was suggested that London
Boroughs, in which many of the elected Members are residents of the Borough,
are presumably able to address any perceptions of conflict of interest when
making decisions. The Assistant Director agreed to check the position at the
London Borough of Islington and whether there were any comparisons.

RCC Members felt very strongly that they would be disenfranchised if elected
Members on the BRC could not vote and urged them to seek dispensation to
speak and/or vote wherever possible.

There was a perception that recent issues; i.e. car park charges and, more
recently, the proposed expansion of the City of London School for Girls were
damaging residents’ relationship with the City Corporation.

The Ward Member for Aldersgate, who is also the Chairman of the City
Corporation’s Housing Management and Almshouses Sub Committee, advised
that elected Members, who are also residents/leaseholders of the City’'s
housing estates, served on this sub committee without compromising
governance.

RCC Members were concerned at the uncertainty which now surrounded well
established and valued governance arrangements. The RCC asked to be kept
informed and consulted on any proposed changes and they would like the
opportunity to respond formally to the City Corporation, as and when any
proposals were being considered.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.
QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE

COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

Page 6



14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
Officers tabled a revised staged process for the Home Improvements Pack
which had originally been approved by the Residents Consultation Committee
in 2016. Members noted that a 6-month trial would commence in April; with a
focus on safety and the integrity of the buildings. Further communications
would follow in the coming weeks and would include long leaseholders not
living on the Estate.

The representative from Andrewes House complained about the excessive
works from the former contractor’s house and asked for it to be investigated.

Members asked if a representative from Blake Tower could attend as an
observer, pending the block formally joining the Barbican Estate.

A Member had observed that the roof of the Guildhall School was very untidy.

A skip outside Blake Tower had been overflowing but Members noted that the
delay in removing it was due to the adverse weather the previous week.

The Chairman suggested that the Barbican Estate should hold an open
meeting at Guildhall, like the Barbican Association’s AGM, and suggested that
this could be an agenda item at the Extraordinary General Meeting in June, as
referred to in ‘matters arising’ at item 3.

The meeting ended at 8.20pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

“You Said; We Did” - Action List — May 2018

Actions from March 2018 Residents Consultation Committee (RCC)
& other outstanding issues (updates appear in italics)

Issue Source Officer Action
Escalation
Fire Safety — Original “deficiency” notice from RCC Michael Completed
London Fire Brigade regarding Willoughby House | March Bennett
2018

Original notice and response from BEO to be sent to

Willoughby House Group representative.

Contact: Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates — 020 7029 3923 —
barbican.estate@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 9

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\2\1\3\Al00070312\$mwpxjcwu.doc



mailto:barbican.estate@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee(s) Date(s):
Residents Consultation Committee 21 May 2018
Barbican Residential Committee 4 June 2018
Subject: For information
Progress of Sales & Lettings

Report of: Public

Director of Community and Children’s Services

Report author:
Ann Mason, Revenues Manager

Summary
This report, which is for information, is to advise members of the sales and
lettings that have been approved by officers since your last meeting.
Approval is under delegated authority and in accordance with Standing
Orders. The report also provides information on surrenders of tenancies
received and the number of flat sales to date.

Recommendation: That the report be noted.

Main Report

BACKGROUND

1. The acceptance of surrenders of tenancies and the sale and letting of flats are
dealt with under delegated authority and in accordance with Standing Orders
77a and 77b.

SURRENDERS

2. No new surrenders received for this period.

RIGHT TO BUY SALES

3.
23 April 2018 30 January 2018
Sales Completed 1079 1079
Total Market Value £94,546,908.01 £94,546,908.01
Total Discount £29,539,064.26 £29,539,064.26
NET PRICE £65,007,843.75 £65,007,843.75

Page 11



OPEN MARKET SALES

4.
23 April 2018 30 January 2018
Sales Completed 853 852
Market Value £152,564,271.97 £151,873,771.97
5. Fifteen exchanges of sold flats have taken place with the sum of £720,254

being paid to the City of London.

6. The freeholds of 14 flats in Wallside have been sold with the sum of £35,000
being paid to the City of London.

7. A 999 year lease has been completed with the sum of £43,200 being paid to

the City of London.

APPROVED SALES

8.
CASE | Block Floor Type Price Remarks as at
23/4/2018
1 Bunyan 5th F3C £690,500 Completed
(2 bed)
2 Defoe 2nd 20 £925,000 Proceeding
(1 bed)
COMPLETED SALES
9. Since the last report one sale has completed. The sale of 503 Bunyan Court

completed on 6 April 2018.

Page 12




SALES PER BLOCK

10.

BLOCK TOTAL TOTAL NET PRICE % NO. OF
NO. OF NO. SOLD £ FLATS
FLATS SOLD

ANDREWES HOUSE 192 184 | 16,648,760.00 95.83
BEN JONSON HOUSE 204 196 | 14,877,454.83 96.08
BRANDON MEWS 26 24| 1,057,460.00 92.31
BRETON HOUSE 111 107 |  7,626,712.50 96.40
BRYER COURT 56 55|  2,307,338.50 98.21
BUNYAN COURT 69 67| 5,384,280.00 97.10
DEFOE HOUSE 178 172 | 16,489,782.50 96.63
GILBERT HOUSE 88 87| 11,046,452.50 98.86
JOHN TRUNDLE COURT 133 131 |  4,467,527.50 98.50
LAMBERT JONES MEWS 8 8|  1400,000.00 100.00
MOUNTJOY HOUSE 64 63| 592572350 98.44
THE POSTERN/WALLSIDE 12 8| 2499630.00 66.67
SEDDON HOUSE 76 75|  8,445,677.50 98.68
SPEED HOUSE 114 107 | 11,568,148.50 93.86
THOMAS MORE HOUSE 166 162 | 13,668,455.00 97.59
WILLOUGHBY HOUSE 148 146 | 14,337,670.50 98.65
TERRACE BLOCK TOTAL | 1645 | 1502 | 137,751073.33| 96.78
(1645) (1591)[(137,060,573.33) (96.72)

CROMWELL TOWER 112 102 | 25,305,801.00 91.07
LAUDERDALE TOWER 117 114 | 24,553,779.63 97.44
SHAKESPEARE TOWER 116 110 | 27,300,415.76 94.83
TOWER BLOCK TOTAL 345 | 326 | 77,159,996.39| 94.49
(345) (326)[ (77,159,996.39) (94.49)

ESTATE TOTAL 1990 1918 | 214,911,069.72 96.38
f (1990)[ (1917)|(214,220.569.72)[ (96.33)

The freeholds of 14 flats in Wallside have been sold. The net price achieved for the
purchase of the original leasehold and subsequent freehold interest is £3,459,500.

Anne Mason
Revenues Manager
T: 020 7029 3912
E: anne. mason@ocityoflondon.gov.uk]

Page 13



mailto:anne.%20mason@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s) Dated:
Residents’ Consultation Committee 21 May 2018
Barbican Residential Committee 04 June 2018
Subject: Public

Service Level Agreements Quarterly Review January —

March 2018

Report of: For Information
Director of Community and Children’s Services

Report author:

Michael Bennett - Head of Barbican Estates

Summary

This report, which is for noting, updates Members on the review of the
estate wide implementation of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and Key
Performance Measures (KPIs) for the quarter January — March 2018. This
report details comments from the House Officers and the Resident
Working Party and an ongoing action plan for each of the SLAs.

Recommendation
Members are asked to:

¢ Note the report.
Main Report

Background

1. This report covers the review of the quarter for
January — March 2018 following the estate-wide implementation of the SLAs and
KPIs with comments from the House Officers and the resident Working Party as
well as an ongoing action plan for each of the service areas.

Current Position

2. All of the agreed six weekly block inspections have been completed in the quarter
January — March.

3. House Officers, Resident Services Manager and the Head of Barbican Estates
attended the recent SLA Working Party review meeting in April to review the
SLAs and KPIs.

4. New comments from the residents Working Party (Randall Anderson, Jane

Smith, David Graves, Robert Barker, Graham Wallace, Fiona Talbot, Fred
Rogers, John Tomlinson, Christopher Makin), House Officers, surveys, House

Page 15



Group meetings, RCC and resident general comments/complaints are
incorporated into the January — March comments.

5. Actions identified following each quarterly review
have been implemented where appropriate and comments are included in the
action plans in Appendices 1 to 5.

6. The KPIs are included in Appendix 6. The action
plans monitor and show the progress made from each of the quarterly reviews
together with all of the comments and responses/actions from the House Officers
and resident working party.

7. All of the unresolved issues from the previous
quarterly reviews to December have been carried forward to this current quarterly
review. The House Officers as residents’ champions determine whether the issue
has been dealt with and completed.

8. All of the resolved issues to September have been
filed as completed by the House Officers in conjunction with the resident working
party. Once comments are completed, they will be removed and filed.

Proposals

9. The Barbican Estate Office will continue to action and review the comments from
the House Officers and Resident Working Parties related to the Customer Care,
Supervision and Management, Estate Management, Property Maintenance, Major
Works and Open Spaces SLAs.

10.The review of the SLAs and KPlIs for the quarter April to June will take place in
July and details of this review will be presented at the September committees.

Conclusion

11.The reviews will continue on a quarterly basis with the Resident SLA working
party and actions will be identified and implemented where appropriate, to
improve services.

Appendices
e Appendices 1- 5 - SLA Action plans
e Appendix 6 — Key Performance Indicators

Background Papers
Quarterly reports to committee from 2005

Michael Bennett
Head of Barbican Estates

T: 020 7029 3923
E: Michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 16


mailto:Michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW- CUSTOMER CARE, SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT 2017-18

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED
New lease enforcement protocol as approved by BRC in
March distributed to residents via bulletin, leaseholder
letter & website. Updates on number of cases being
progressed to be included in KPIs starting quarter April
232 |Jan -Mar 18 BEO to June 2018. For comment only v
231 |Jan -Mar 18 BEO Website being updated by new communications officer.
Landlord's Approval process has been amended to
ensure the integrity of the building is maintained, during
and after leaseholders carry out alterations. Updated
230 |Jan -Mar 18 BEO residents via bulletin, leaseholder letter & website. For comment only v
New House Officer - there will be a communications plan
229 Jan-Mar 18 BEO for introducing the new member of the team. For comment only v
New Communications Officer has started, to improve
mv standards of communications and to manage the
Q information being given to the BEO for distribution. Data
L(% Jan-Mar 18 protection issues also have to be addressed. Comms Good feedback already received, and has taken a
= Officer will work solely for BEO - mainly SC but some considerable amount of work off the HOs shoulders
228 BEO Landlord projects. which gives them more time for service issues. v
This is being worked on by the new Communications Officer.
Oct-Dec 17 Email Broadcasts - can the style be looked at? Would Feedback from SLA WP is that its greatly improved -
227 SLA sections work better? better content, style and design. v
To be considered. Mixed feedback from group. To review
226 Oct-Dec 17 SLA Group to consider using Basecamp for this Working Party. |post RIP and SLA.
At RCC AGM in January it was agreed that all Working
Parties (WP) remain. The Underfloor Heating WP to review
Oct-Dec 17 new Member Chair, Terms of Reference & liaise with PS
224 RCC Current Working Party structure is being reviewed by RCC. |officers regarding projects & meetings. v
July-Sept 17 Comment; received f_rom residents abogt the explanations Curre.ntly being revieweq by Leasehold Service Charge
222 HO sent out with the service charges not being sufficient. Working Party and Service Charge & Revenues Team.
Draft SLA booklet being finalised by BEO & to be presented
Apr-June 17 Review of Residents Information Pack & SLA booklet on hold|by our communications officer via basecamp (web based
221 BEO due to other priorities & resourcing issues. discussion forum) to the SLA WP in May.
Page 1 09/05/18




APPENDIX 1
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW- CUSTOMER CARE, SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT 2017-18

Apr-June 17

2017 Residents Survey on hold due to other priorities &

220 BEO resourcing issues. Anticipated to be distributed in May 2018. v
Communications Officer has begun to compile this list for
215 | Jan-Mar 17 BEO BEO to compile a list of routine articles for the bulletins. schedule of regular articles. v
Completed Actions - House Officers as residents’
champions determine whether the issue has been dealt
with and completed satisfactorily
GAG Gardens Advisory Group PS Property Services
CPA Car Park Attendant LL/SC Landlord/Service Charge cost
LP Lobby Porter DCCS Department of Children & Community Services
BAC Barbican Centre BOG Barbican Operational Group
Source of comments
U HO House Officers COM Complaint
6 RCC Residents Consultation Committee SURYV Survey
) RCC ? RCC Pre Committee Question HGM House Group Meeting
[ AGM House Group Annual General Meeting
(99)

Page 2

09/05/18




APPENDIX 2

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - ESTATE MANAGEMENT 2017-18

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED
Cleaning Standards of both podium and the blocks
have been a concern this quarter. Partially, this has House Officers working with Cleaning Manager to see
220 Jan - Mar 18 |Hos been due to the bad weather we have experienced. an improvement in the next quarter.
Following the recent Barbican Centre tunnel event, the
BEO should review staffing levels across the estate
(particularly the Towers) to ensure they provide Only one complaint received from aresident. No issues
adequate protection in terms of Security, for future in either tower. BA to feedback to BC in Lessons Learnt
219 Jan- Mar 18 |COM events. exercise.
The BEO has spoken with the tenant concerned, who is
struggling with their private waste collection service at
Garchey Bay area is being used by a commercial tenant {the moment and have asked they be more proactive in
for their food waste. There have been some issues with |ensuring it's collected in a timely fashion. The BEO is
218 Jan - Mar 18 [RCC Qs collection and some bags have burst. monitoring.
o Officers have reviewed the method by which the
Q Review of balcony/fire escape routes inspection inspections are carried out ensuring office cover and
2€2  Jan - Mar 18 |BEO process. staff availability. v
N Bins in private gardens - comments received about
'5 possibility of locating them closer to the exit points.
Also if the bins could have lids to prevent spillage and |For discussion. Cleaning Manager is pursuing.
that they are emptied as part of the weekend cleaning |Comment came about due to problems with foxes
216 Jan - Mar 18 |[AGM duties. pulling food waste from bins.
Block Inspection Reports not being received by
Window Cleaning Manager - All House Officers to
ensure reports are received so they can pick up on any
214 Jan - Mar 18 |BEO Window Cleaning Monitoring. issues not raised directly
Comments received that the temporary signage around the |BEO currently reviewing location, volume & quality of
lake peapods and St Giles' Terrace are very tatty. Are they |signage. Signage to be putin place to be discreet,
212 Oct - Dec 17 |SLA necessary? Can they be removed? permanent and professional. Not a deluge though!
BEO have liaised with both Barbican Centre and CoL
Community Safety Officers. BEO cleaning off any graffiti as
211 Oct-Dec 17 |BEO Increase in graffiti on the Estate has been noted. soon as possible. v
Page 3 09/05/18




APPENDIX 2

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - ESTATE MANAGEMENT 2017-18

Follow up balcony inspections were carried out on Gilbert

These blocks were visited again to see if items had been
put back out and to see if any other balconies were blocked.
Overall the result was good with very few items needing to

209 Oct-Dec 17 |BEO House, Seddon House and John Trundle Court. be removed on this round of inspections.
208 July-Sept 17 (WP Reminder on fire routes was suggested. Bulletin to remind residents to check their fire routes.
Following meetings with the London Ambulance Service
(LAS) clear guidance produced for all stakeholders
July-Sept 17 including residents, Estate Concierge and the LAS
distributed via bulletin & leaseholder letter. Paper copy
207 WP Ambulance points for emergency services. also went to all properties and all external addresses.
Information passed on to the Cleaning Supervisors for
follow up and these areas are being monitored whilst on
duty at the weekend. (Residents are reminded to contact
July-Sept 17 their Concierge or Porter if they need to report a particular
Cleanliness of Gilbert Bridge and other hotspots at the issue at the weekend). On-going and still being
206 SLA weekend. monitored.
LY New powers of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) for fly tipping.
Q Will BEO be liaising with Cleansing about various problem |Signage is now in-situ. BEO will monitor to see if this
1% Jan - Mar 16 |SLA areas around the Estate? effective.
N
o

Page 4

09/05/18




SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 2017-18

APPENDIX 3

] Quarter \ Source ] COMMENT/QUERY \ RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED
Customer Service issues with VFM and Community Been progressed via Property Services in order to
Vision. Slow to recognise when it's a block or estate obtain a clear protocol & response times for residents
200 Jan - Mar 18 SLA issue. which will be presented via our bulletin.
Installation of cabling now completed. VFM contacting
original interested parties on 7th floor to ascertain if
201  Jan - Mar 18 RCC Qs VFM installation to 7th floor of Bryer Court. they would like to access their services.
Repairs & Maintenance (R&M) contract (anticipated
contract start date December 2018). First stage
consultation letters sent to residents in March.
Officer working group now set up led by new
Property Services Manager who will be seeking 2 Brief, timeliness to be provided to Asset Maintenance
resident volunteers from the Asset Maintenance Working Party in order to seek 2 resident volunteers for
202.lj Jan - Mar 18 HO/PS  |Working Party. the working group.
1) Some House Groups have requested more specific |This can be organised by the House Officers upon
20@3 Jan -Mar 18 HG/BEO |data about their lifts (i.e. outages). request. v
T New member of staff is now in post. House Officers
2042 Jan -Mar 18 HO/PS |Changing of light bulb KPI still an issue hope to see an improvement this next quarter.
HOs to be kept up to date regarding unresolved issues, e.g.
water penetration, work involving scaffolding which has been
198 Oct-Dec 17 HO/PS Monthly meetings with PS and HO to be re-introduced. |up for some time etc. v
Page 5 09/05/18



APPENDIX 3
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 2017-18

2¢ obed

Page 6

09/05/18



APPENDIX 4
SLA AGREEMENT REVIEW - MAJOR WORKS 2017-18

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED
Thomas More House redecorations are going
well and very good feedback received at the
AGM. Comments include " very happy with the
preparation of surfaces and the contractors
158 | Jan- Mar 2018 BEO behaviour". For comment only. v
Landlord's work to the roof at Mountjoy House
has commenced & is expected to be completed |For comment only. Project has been extended. Mountjoy
159 | Jan- Mar 2018 BEO in May. residents have been informed. v
Please ensure the Gardens are included within
the Asset Maintenance schedule (regarding hard
157 | Oct - Dec 17 SLA landscaping). This has been passed on to the lead officer of this Working Party v
PS to provide a programme of works for annual
asbestos checking (and possible House Officers have met with contractors and PS to discuss
encapsulation/removal) programme in communications protocol, notice etc. This programme is
communal areas. This to include accurate expected to begin in May. House Officers are satisfied that the
] information regarding areas being worked on new protocols should alleviate the problems experienced just
156 E Oct - Dec 17 HO and why it is being worked on. after Christmas 2017. v
[ts) External redecoration work - feedback from
® residents about fire doors from flats being painted |Policy on external redecoration on fire doors from Tower flats
153[\2 Jul-Sept HO shut following external redecoration programmes. |(and Bunyan and Ben Jonson north side) - being reviewed by PS.
b Internal redecoration works for 17/18 put on hold
due to the possibility of front door replacement
152 Jul-Sept PS programme. Communicated to the House Group Chairs only.
Following re-tender of the repairs concrete works second stage
consultation was carried out in January 2018. We expect to
Is there an update as to when the repairs to the commence works in late Spring 2018. New timeline of events is:
balcony soffits, following the concrete testing, will be |April 2018 - contractor appointed, June 2018 - works commence,
149| Oct-Dec 16 HO completed. May 2019 - works completed.

09/05/18




APPENDIX 5
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - OPEN SPACES 2017-18

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED
Sculpture Court planters were critised recently as they Comments have been passed to the GAG. (planters were
Jan- Mar are in need of repair and planting issues need to be installed by United House and now the responsibility of
173 18 AGM addressed - residents comments from AGM. BEO).
Photograph of the Barbican Gardening Team to be
172 |Jan-Mar 18 BEO included in the bulletin. Completed April. v
Oct - Dec For comment only. Many positive comments received about
171 17 BEO New Barbican Supervisor has started on site. the impact he has made on the gardens and the team. v
Y
Q
(@)
D
N
D
Page 8 09/05/18




Appendix 6. Barbican KPIs 2017-18

Title of
Indicator

TARGET
2015/16

TARGET
2016/17

8T/LT0C
1394Vv1L

LT/9T0C
IvNLOV

LT0C
NNC
-ddv

LTOC
1d3S
-ATNC

LTOC
o3a
- 100

8T0¢
dVIN
- NVl

1394VL
LSNIVOV S

S34904dd

SUMMARY

8T/LT0¢C

[enoy

Customer
Care

Answer all letters
satisfactorily with
a full reply within
10 working days

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

34/34

Answer all emails
to public email
addresses within 1
day and a full
reply to requests
for information
within 10 days

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

120/120

Gz obed

To resolve written
complaints
satisfactorily
within 14 days

100%

100%

100%

100%

%

100%

100%

100%

0 complaints.

Repairs &
Maintenance

% 'Urgent’ repairs
(complete within
24 hours)

95%

95%

95%

99.8%

100%

99%

99%

99%

% 'Intermediate’
repairs (complete
within 3 working
days)

95%

95%

95%

99.3%

98%

99%

99%

98%

% 'Non-urgent'
repairs (complete
within 5 working
days)

95%

95%

95%

99.0%

98%

99%

96%

99%




9g abed

i S ; N2 o [ 2 2 N>
Title of TARGET | TARGET g 2 § g Sex |8 mc| 398 (8 £5| %93 A 23
Indicator 2015/16 | 2016/17 | = @ == RHZp|R3% | R0+ |63 2| 8z= =5
0o ~N = ' ) ' —-Q o ©
% 'Low priority'
repairs (complete | o, 95% 95% | 98.2% 99% 98% 99% 99% ©
within 20 working
days)
Tower Tower Tﬁ:tvs er TS\;\tlser Tower Lifts Tﬁ]ytvs er @
o lifts 99% | lifts 99% 98.43% | 92 77% 99.57% 99.88%
Availability % of 99% 99% - - -
Barbican lifts 0 0 Terrace Terrace Terrace | Terrace | Terrace | Terrace
ifre 000 | TS lifts Lifts Lifts lifts ©
98.9% 99.74% | 99.24% | 98.86% | 99.10%
Still some
resourcing issues
C?;?S;Zﬁg% in the Resident
bulbs - percentage| 90% | 90% | 90% | 96% 91% | 82% 7% 73% ® (Ezﬁ'”sjtr ::229
meeting 5 working .
days target lights met 5
working day
target)
Background
p2$czg:?'[gg;e Total Total Total Total Total Total
. o 90% 90% 90% 100% 100% 100%
tasregr(\el'zc?r%t\g ;tlr;l 23 Partial Partial Partial Partial N/A N/A Partial Partial @
) 0, 0, 0, 0, 0 0,
24hrs/ Partial loss 90% 90% 90% 98.5% %100 96.84%
3 working days
Communal locks
& closures -
percentage of
repeat orders 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% @

raised within 5
working days of
original order




)2 abed

- > 3
Title of TARGET|TARGET| 8% 2q N o NS noo nzs| 2383 Sz
e o 538 & 2 Sch|S2mE|(cema 252|288 SUMMARY R 2
Indicator | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | = & =5 RZ3 |S535 (Ko |62 832 S5
o ~ - ' : ' LR ®
Replacement of
lift car light bulbs - 33 out of 34 lights
percentage 90% 90% 90% 100% 100% 100% 96% 97% @ met 5 working day
meeting 5 working target
days target
Estate
Management
House Officer 6-
weekly joint
inspections with
House Group 30/36 inspection -
e | oo | oo | smo | e | | o | ame | e | e | @ |EheTAn
cleaning - good Improvement
and very good Plans being
standard (& initiated with
outstanding) certain cleaners
House Officer 6-
weekly joint
inspections with
House Group
representatives | gq00 | go% | 80% | 92% 92% | 90% 81% 81% ©
monitoring

communal window
cleaning - good
and very good
standard




ge abed

N — N > = 3 n
Title of TARGET|TARGET| 2% | 29 Ne» [BRE|RUQ |BRES| 583 23
Indicator | 2015/16 [ 2016/17 | S @ | 2§ RS2 BT |BBS |53z |0z | SUMMARY S 2
oD | N7 T - 158k o =
House Officer 6- 22/34 inspections
weekly joint carried out. Bad
inspections with weather and rock
House Group salt that was put
representatives 80% 80% 80% 84% 81% 96% 57% 65% @ down had some
monitoring podium part to play but
cleaning - good thebre (ijs still work
and very good to be done to
standard improve results
House Officer 6-
weekly joint
inspections with
House Group
representatives 80% 80% 80% 89% 97% 95% 83% 83% @
monitoring car
park cleaning -
good and very
good 25/30
Open Spaces
To carry out
variations/addition
al garden works
(other than
seasonalworks | gn00 | oo | gooe | 100% n/a n/a 100% | 100% | ©

and unless other
timescale agreed)
within 6 weeks (30
working days) of
BEO approval

Major Works




62 abed

N — N > = 3 n
Title of  |TARGET|TARGET| 2% | 20 Ner (BAS|899 825|388 | summary =
Indicator | 2015/16 [ 2016/17 | S @ | 2 & 283|835 |50 |B%Z | g2 S €
o 4 ~N = ' ' ' LR ®
% Overall
Resident Willoughby Willoughby 9/148
satisfaction qf 90% 90% 90% 95% 92% n/a 100% N/A Brandon Mews
completed Major Brandon 8/26 response
Works Projects Mews 75% rate
(E50k+)

Short Term
Holiday Lets
Possible STHL
reported to BE_O NA NA NA NA
because of noise
or nuisance 2 0 0
STHL reported to
BEO after being
found on a NA NA NA NA
website and being
investigated 0 1 1
STHL at Stage 1 NA NA NA NA 2 1 0
STHL at Stage 2 NA NA NA NA 0 0 0




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 8

Committee(s) Dated:

Residents’ Consultation Committee - For Information 21/05/2018

Barbican Residential Committee — For decision 04/06/2018

Subject: Public

Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores

Report of: For Decision by

Director of Community and Children's Services Barbican Residential
Committee

Report authors:

Paul Murtagh

Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services

Michael Bennett
Head of Barbican Estates

Summary

The context for the review of the Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores on the
Barbican Estate includes the following:

Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some years
significantly exceeded income;

The Barbican car parks are underused with a large number of vacant car
parking spaces that could be put to much better use (including the provision of
storage units for residents);

There is currently a waiting list for additional storage of over 270 Barbican
residents;

The current 3-year Charging Policy for Stores expired in March 2018 and is
due for review;

The City Corporation has implemented an ‘Efficiency Plan’, which seeks to
maximise income from its property assets;

The City Corporation is carrying out a general review of all its car parks within
the City.

At its meeting on 5 June 2017, the Barbican Residential Committee received a report
on the Charging Policy for Car Parking on the Barbican Estate. The Committee
agreed that a Member/Officer Working Party be established to carry out further work
on the Charging Policy including, commissioning and considering advice from
alternative independent consultants in relation to market rental levels for car parking
and storage spaces and a study of car park usage and cost allocation, before
bringing a report back to the Committee. The Working Party has now completed its
task and, this report comprises an overview of the work done and its findings and
recommendations.

Page 31




Recommendations

The Residents Consultation Committee is asked to note and comment on the
Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores.

The Barbican Residential Committee is asked to endorse the work and
recommendations of the Member/Officer Working Group and specifically, to:

1.

Agree the lettings policy that storage spaces in the car parks can be let to non-
Barbican residents within ‘walking distance’ (defined as other City residents living
within a half mile of the entrance to the car park where the stores are located)
should there be insufficient demand from Barbican Estate residents.

Agree that this lettings policy comes into effect six months after the completion of
the new stores project.

Agree that this lettings policy is subject to review 12 months after implementation
by the Barbican Residential Committee.

Agree the charge of £40 per square foot, per annum, for ‘Barbican Resident only’
stores in the residential blocks and existing and new stores in the car parks with,
the increase for existing users being phased in incrementally over a period of
three years.

Agree the charge of £44 per square foot, per annum, for ‘non-resident’ stores in
the car parks.

Agree the charge of £1,750 per car parking space, per annum, for new car park
users.

Agree the charge of £1,750 per car parking space, per annum, for existing car
park users, to be phased in incrementally over a period of three years.

Agree the policy that the above charges are reviewed annually with increases
applied in line with the Consumer Price Index (CP1).

Further agree the policy that the above charges are reviewed and assessed
every three years in line with opinions of value and market rent.

10.Agree that if any further car parking spaces become available as a result of a

further reduction in car park occupancy, that officers review the possibility of
utilising these spaces for potential further storage.

11.Agree that the Working Party further reviews the work of the Concierge Service

(including the allocation of its costs) and the current provision of five ‘free’ hours
temporary car parking for visitors, contractors etc.

Page 32



Main Report

Background

1.

Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some vyears
significantly exceeded income. In 2016, the Barbican Residential Committee
instructed officers to review the underused Barbican car parking spaces and
subsequently agreed that they could and should be put to other uses including
the provision of additional storage space (refer to Appendix 1 — New Stores
Project Process) in order to generate additional income to meet the Service
Based Review targets of £154k and annual efficiency savings from 2017/18 for
the Barbican Estate.

. Following consideration of a report on the charging policy for car parking and

stores on the Barbican Estate at its meeting in December 2016, the Barbican
Residential Committee instructed officers to obtain advice from an independent
consultant on opinions of value of car parking and storage spaces and bring back
to Committee the recommended charges.

A Charging Policy for Car Parking was subsequently presented to the Barbican
Residential Committee at its meeting on 5 June 2017 however, members
decided, as an interim measure, to increase the charges for 2017/18 in line with
the Consumer Price Index.

Members also agreed that a Member/Officer Working Party be established to
carry out further work on the Charging Policy including, commissioning and
considering advice from alternative independent consultants in relation to market
rental levels for car parking and storage spaces and, a study of car park usage
and cost allocation, before bringing a report back to the Barbican Residential
Committee.

The members of the Working Party are:

Ann Holmes (Chair) — Chairman of the BRC

Sue Pearson — Deputy Chairman of the BRC

Randall Anderson — Member of the BRC

John Tomlinson — Member of the BRC

Paul Murtagh — Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services
Michael Bennett — Head of Barbican Estates

A Charging Policy for Stores was not presented to the Barbican Residential
Committee on 5 June 2017 as there were unforeseen delays in the delivery of the
new stores project and the current policy for existing stores did not in any event
expire until March 2018.

Current Position

7.

The Member/Officer Working Party, which was set up at the instruction of the
Barbican Residential Committee in June 2017, has now completed its work and
its findings and recommendations are included at Appendix 2 to this report.

Page 33



8. The Planning and Transportation Committee at its meeting in April 2018
approved the planning application for new stores in the car parks for residents
and non-residents (see Appendix 1 paragraph 7). This report has been prepared
on the basis of this decision. However, nothing in this report is detrimental to the
granting of this planning consent and the subsequent conditions contained
therein.

Options

9. The Working Party considered worked examples of the charges and potential
forecasted income for car parking and stores based on the independent opinions
received and reviewed a number of options as outlined in Appendix 5 and 6.

Proposals

10.A charge of £1,750 per car parking space per annum for new car park users (see
Appendix 5).

11.A charge of £1,750 per car parking space, per annum, for existing car park users,
to be phased in incrementally over a period of three years (see Appendix 5).

12.A charge of £40 per square foot, per annum, for existing and new stores in the
residential blocks and car parks, phased in incrementally over a period of three
years for existing users (see Appendix 6).

13. Although the valuation allows for 10-20% more if non-residents use them, this
would not be invoked but a 10% surcharge would apply to cover the additional
concierge charges for non-Barbican residents.

14.Charges for car parking spaces and stores to be reviewed annually based on the
Consumer Price Index with an additional three-year review of charges based on
opinions of value and market rent.

15. At the Barbican Residential Committee at its meeting in December 2016, it was
agreed to utilise market rates as a basis for a charging policy and these
proposals take account of the independent consultants’ opinion of value.

16.These proposals also take account of a previous report to the Barbican
Residential Committee, which stated that if, the proposed charges are
significantly higher than current ones, recommendations will be made regarding
the phasing in of these increased payments for existing users.

17.In implementing these proposals, the City Corporation would be making a much
better use of its assets (the Barbican car parks) in relation to the independent
opinions of value and market rent received. The additional income would not only
help in achieving the City Corporation’s Efficiencies Savings targets, but would
also potentially, provide for significant additional funding for future projects across
the City including the Barbican Estate.

Page 34



18.1t is proposed to utilise further car parking spaces for storage as unused spaces
become available as a result of, for example, possible further reductions in car
park occupancy.

19.1t is proposed that the use of the new stores in the car parks would be based on
the letting policy as set out in Appendix 1 paragraph 8.

20.1t is proposed to review the work of the Concierge Service (including the
allocation of its costs) and the current provision of five ‘free’ hours temporary car
parking for visitors, contractors etc.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

21.In terms of the relevant policies incorporated in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Asset Management Strategy, the proposals contained in this report will ensure
that:

e Operational assets remain in a good, safe and statutory compliant condition;

e Operational assets are fit for purpose and meet service delivery needs;

¢ Annual revenue expenditure is efficiently managed to ensure value for money
and operational asset running costs are reduced wherever possible;

e Opportunities to create added value and maximise income generation can be
pursued.

Implications

22.As the principle of utilising market rental levels as a basis for charging has been
accepted, the additional income would not only help in achieving the City
Corporation’s Efficiencies Savings targets, but would also potentially, provide for
significant additional funding for future projects across the City including the
Barbican Estate.

23.The financial implications are set out in the main body of this report and are also
included in Appendices 5 and 6.

24 Delays in the new stores project and an agreed charging policy have had a
financial impact on the budget position for 2017/18 and will continue to do so for
2018/19. If a charging policy is not agreed by Committee at its meeting today, it
will not be possible to give the required notification to licence holders in order to
effect the increase from the September quarter (notice has to be given by 24
June). Any later than this and the increases would not come into effect until 25
December 2018.

25.Furthermore, following planning approval for the news stores in the car parks, the
latest estimations are that contractors would be on site in the Summer and we
would be in a position to commence letting in the Autumn. If a charging policy is
not agreed by Committee at its meeting today it will not be possible to market
these new stores to residents.

Page 35



26.Delays in not approving the charging policy recommendations in this report today
would result in a potential estimated loss of income of £145k for the quarter
September to December 2018/19 based on the worked examples in appendices
5 and 6 (£15k would relate to car parks and £130k relating to stores).

27.The income from the stores in the car parks would be credited to the Car Park
Account. Assuming a 15% reduction in overall car park usage as set out in the
Appendix 5, the increased car park charges of £1,750 per space would increase
net income by £135k per annum by 2020/21. The charge of £40 per square foot
of storage would increase net income by £755k per annum by 2020/21 as set out
in Appendix 6.

28.Dependent on the Members decision on the policy for surplus storage being
available to those within walking distance, further additional income could be
obtained

29.The forecasted possible reduction in car park occupancy due to the increased
charges of 15% would also present the option to utilise further car parking spaces
for storage as unused spaces become available. Note the breakeven point for the
higher charges would be a reduction in usage of 28%.

30. Additional resources will be required to manage and administer the potential
considerable changes that are expected to result from implementing these
recommendations.

Conclusions

31.The Member/Officer Working Party, set up at the instruction of the Barbican
Residential Committee, has reviewed advice from independent consultants on
opinions of value and market rent for car parking and storage spaces and their
recommendations are laid out in paragraphs 1-11 of this report.

32.The Working Party further recommends that there is a review of the work of the
Concierge Service (including the allocation of its costs) and the current provision
of five ‘free’ hours temporary car parking for visitors, contractors etc.

Appendices
e Appendix 1 — New stores project process
e Appendix 2 — Car Park Charging Working party report
e Appendix 3 — Brief to independent consultants
e Appendix 4 — Independent consultants’ reports
e Appendix 5 — Worked examples of car park charges and potential forecasted

income and costs
e Appendix 6 — Worked examples of stores charges and potential forecasted
income and costs

Page 36



Background Papers

Car Park Strategy Stage One 2009

Car Park Strategy Update 2009

Barbican Estate Car Park Efficiency Strategy Working Party 2011

Baggage Stores Charging Policy 2011

Car Park Charging Policy February 2013

Car Park Charging Policy December 2013

Car Park and Baggage Stores Charging Policy January 2014

Revenue and Capital Budgets — Latest Approved Budget 2013/14 and Original
Budget 2014/15

Service Based Review Proposals — Department of Community & Children’s Services
2014

Car Park Charging Policy 2015

Car Park Charging Policy March 2016

Service Based Review March 2016

Review of Public Car Park Provision in the City November 2016

Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores November 2016

Charging Policy for Car Parking June 2017

Michael Bennett
Head of Barbican Estates
Department of Community and Children's Services

T: 020 70293923
E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Appendix 1 New Stores Project process

1. In 2016 the Barbican Residential Committee asked officers to review the
underused Barbican car parking spaces in conjunction with the current and
potential demand for additional storage spaces.

2. A residents’ survey was carried out in relation to the demand for additional
storage and this was reviewed in conjunction with the current waiting list. Since
2016, over 270 residents have been on our waiting list for additional storage.

3. A project to install 316 further residents’ stores in the vacant bays in the car parks
(currently over 500 vacant bays) was progressed via the City Corporation’s
Gateway process. This included the option of extending the letting of storage
spaces in the car parks to non-Barbican residents should there be insufficient
demand from Barbican Estate residents.

4. The Barbican Estate Office currently rents stores in the car parks to Barbican
residents only and does not have a policy of renting to other residents in the City.

5. Following a pre-planning consultation exercise undertaken by the Barbican
Estate Office in July 2017 a planning application for the new stores in the car
parks for residents and non-residents was submitted in September.

6. As part of the formal planning application consultation, which took place in
October 2017, a number of objections were lodged relating mainly to non-
residents usage of the new stores (mainly security concerns). As a result, it was
deemed necessary for the planning application for the new stores project to be
presented to the Planning and Transportation Committee.

7. The Planning and Transportation Committee at its meeting in April 2018
approved the planning application for new stores in the car parks for residents
and non-residents subject to the following conditions:

¢ Revised plans with the omission of three of the original proposed storage
units and the omission or adjustment of any other proposed storage units
which may require removal or adjustment pursuant to a Safety Statement (to
demonstrate that none of the storage units would have an adverse impact on
fire escape/access and vehicle/pedestrian safety within the car parks).

e The use shall not commence until a management plan has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority detailing:

1. That the storage units would be offered to Barbican residents in the
first instance;

2. The proportion of storage units that would be let to Barbican
residents at any one time;

Page 39



3. The criteria for letting storage units to non-Barbican residents
(stipulating the non-commercial nature of the storage and the extent of the
letting catchment area);

4. The fire safety arrangements, including such matters as restricting the
storage of hazardous items and maintaining fire escape access;

5. The security measures to prevent unauthorised access to private
residential areas.

The use shall not commence until details of CCTV provision within the car
parks have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the
approved drawings and particulars or as approved under conditions of this
planning permission

8. Itis proposed that the use of the new stores in the car parks would be based on
the following letting policy to be approved by the Barbican Residential
Committee:

storage spaces in the car parks be let to non-Barbican residents within
walking distance (defined as other City residents living within half a mile of the
entrance to the car park storage) should there be insufficient demand from
Barbican Estate residents

the policy to come into effect after six months following the completion of the
new stores project

the policy be subject to a twelve-month review by the Barbican Residential
Committee

Page 40



Appendix 2 Car Park Charging Working Party Report

1. A Member/Officer Working Party was set up in June 2017 and has met four
times. Terms of Reference were agreed including the review of car park usage
and car park attendants/concierge time allocation. The members of the Working
Party are:

Ann Holmes (Chair) — Chairman of the BRC

Sue Pearson — Deputy Chairman of the BRC

Randall Anderson — Member of the BRC

John Tomlinson — Member of the BRC

Paul Murtagh — Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services
Michael Bennett — Head of Barbican Estates

2. It was agreed to seek advice, from two independent consultants, on values and
market rental levels for car parking and stores based on a brief agreed by the
Working Party.

3. Independent advice was obtained from Gerald Eve and Farebrother, Chartered
Surveyors, to advise on the current open market rental levels for car parking and
stores. The brief issued to them is attached at Appendix 3 and, their respective
reports and advice are attached at Appendix 4.

4. Their reports set out their opinion of rental value for both the Barbican residential
car parking and storage spaces based on the evidence of open market charges
with due allowance being made for the unique factors relevant to the Barbican
car parks. The leaseholders with a long-term car bay agreement will continue to
pay a service charge in the normal way and are not affected by the
recommendations in this report. These service charges will be subject to current
and on-going service charge reviews.

5. It was agreed to consider worked examples of the charges and potential
forecasted income for car parking and stores based on the independent opinions
received and a number of assumptions.

6. It was agreed that the options of the two opinions of value be presented to
committee of £1,750 and £2,000 per car parking space per annum (see appendix
5).

7. It was agreed that stores should be rented for between £40 and £50 per square
foot, per annum depending on size and location but in order to avoid confusion in
communicating these charges to residents a single rent of £40 per square foot
per annum be charged (see Appendix 6).

Page 41



8. It was agreed that although the valuation allows for 10-20% more if non-residents
use them, this would not be invoked but a 10% surcharge would apply to cover
the additional concierge charges for non-Barbican residents.

9. It was agreed to phase in the charging for car parking and stores for existing
users incrementally, over a period of three years (see Appendices 5 and 6).

10.1t was agreed to review the charging for car parking and stores annually based on
the Consumer Price Index (see Appendices 5 and 6).

11.1t was agreed that the charging for car parking and stores should be reviewed
and assessed every three years in line with opinions of value and market rent.

12.1t was also suggested that it might be timely to review the work of the Concierge
Service (including the allocation of its costs) and the current provision of five ‘free’
hours temporary car parking for visitors, contractors etc.

13.The Working Party reviewed a draft of the report to Committee and agreed its
recommendations.

Page 42



o obed

Appendix 3
Brief for independent consultants

Market valuation of a car parking space as a rental asset based on:

Current car parking charges: £1,258 pa based on rental agreement.

History of basis of car parking charges — appendix 1.

History and current car parking occupancy — appendix 2.

Car parking spaces which are owned (sold) and those which are rented (residential) — appendix 2.

Potential use of Breton car park for the City’s Culture Mile proposals (which could potentially utilise car parking
spaces for retail outlets fronting Beech Street tunnel)

Car park spaces are being converted into new resident stores (313) utilising car parking spaces (198) mainly in Breton
& Bunyan car parks - see occupancy schedule. Subject to planning approval. New stores anticipated Summer 2018.
Position with regards to commercial car parking - The City’s Planning Officer has advised that marketing to potential
external users & neighbouring developments for commercial parking would be contrary to Condition 7 of the
Planning and Parking Policies within the Local Plan. City Transportation has also confirmed that commercial car
parking would be contrary to policies to restrain commuting to the City by car and Policy DM16.6 in the Local Plan
does not permit new public car parks or the temporary use of vacant spaces. Therefore the City’s Planning Officer
would oppose planning permission being granted for commercial car parking.

In addition to the factors listed above the valuer is to take account of:
o The condition and size of the car spaces and the manoeuvrability into the car spaces.
o The positive aspect of the Barbican’s 24-hour security within the car parks.
o The Barbican car parks being located within the Congestion Charge zone.

Comparable evidence for use in assessing the market rental value of the Barbican car spaces will ideally be of
residential developments where the flats are valued at between £1,200 and £1,500 per sq ft and which have rented

BEO Shared\Reports\Reports 16\Barbican Estate Market Valuations for Car Parking Spaces & Stores July 2017.docx



vt abed

onsite parking. The comparables to be as close to the City as possible, including developments east of the City 1.e.
Canary Wharf. If there is insufficient comparable evidence available that meets these criteria the valuer is to use
his/her professional judgement to draw on further comparable evidence suitable for assessing the rental value of the
car spaces.

Market valuation on the stores as an asset per square meter utilising the residential blocks and car parking spaces:

e Current stores charges based on rental agreement & dimensions:
o Standard (stores located in residential blocks for resident use only) £313 - 1.2m(1)x1m(w)
o Medium (transportable stores located in the car parks for residents use only) £373 - 2m(1)x1.5m(w)
o Large (‘breeze block’ stores located in the car parks for residents use only) £440 - 2m(1)x1.9m(w)

e History of basis of stores charges — currently RPI.

e Stores which are owned (sold) and those which are rented (residential) — appendix 3.

e Confidence of take up of new stores based on current Residents Waiting list for stores of over 260 residents and that
these new stores will be made available to those within walking distance of the Barbican Estate, should demand from
residents be insufficient (subject to planning and committee approval).

e New resident storage (313) utilising car parking spaces (198) mainly in Breton & Bunyan car parks - see occupancy
schedule. Subject to planning approval. New stores anticipated Summer 2018.

o 3 different sized residents’ stores all located in the car parks. Dimensions:

o Large sized unit shall be no more than 2m(l)x2m(w)x1.9m(h)
o Extra-large sized unit shall be no more than 2m(1)x3m(w)x1.9m(h)
o Extra extra large sized unit shall be no more than 2m(1)x4m(w)x1.9m(h)

Please note that for the basis of this report some of the data below has been updated.

BEO Shared\Reports\Reports 16\Barbican Estate Market Valuations for Car Parking Spaces & Stores July 2017.docx



Appendix 1 - History of car parking charges

History of car parking charges from 2001 to date

Price change implemented

2001 | 2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017
CBIQ:;glng Rl | RPI | RPI | RPI | RPI | RPI | RPI | RPU | cpy
% change 4.9% 0% 3% 52% | 26% | 24% | 23% | 12% | 2.7%
Residential
Car Parking
Per Annum — | £990 | £990 | £990 | £990 | £990 | £990 | £990 | £990 | £1,038 | £1,038 | £1,070 | £1,126 | £1,155 | £1,183 | £1,210 | £1,225 | £1,258
Rental
charge
Appendix 2 History of Car Parking occupancy
Date Residential Let Residential Let Bays | Commercial Let Sold Bays Total Usage Total Occupancy
;DU Bays +/- Bays %
«Q Jun-06 863 1% 20 134 1,017 1,702 59.8
) Dec-07 848 -2% 35 117 1,000 1,702 58.8
& Oct-08 820 -3% 46 169 1,035 1,538 67.3
o1 Oct-09 777 -5% 65 121 963 1,497 64.3
Oct-10 752 -3% 77 118 947 1,497 63.3
Oct-11 744 1% 69 155 968 1,497 64.7
Oct-12 737 -1% 89 153 979 1,508 64.9
Nov-13 718 -3% 54 297 1,069 1,508 70.8
Nov-14 691 -4% 51 295 1,037 1,508 68.8
Nov-15 682 1% 34 294 1,010 1,508 67.0
Sep-16 679 -1% 31 285 995 1,508 66.0
Nov-17 648 -5% 47 283 1,014 1,508 64.9

BEO Shared\Reports\Reports 16\Barbican Estate Market Valuations for Car Parking Spaces & Stores July 2017.docx




ot obed

Current Car Parking occupancy - March

2018
THOMAS 01 03
CAR PARK ANDREWES BRETON BUNYAN CROMWELL DEFOE SPEED LAUDERDALE MORE WILLOUGHBY WILLOUGHBY TOTALS
SOLD 12 0 1 9 36 113 17 11 5 79 283
RESIDENTIAL 87 69 86 56 90 33 70 90 63 3 647
COMMERCIAL 0 0 4 0 0 2 0 0 33 0 39
VACANT 36 170 118 27 34 7 18 49 48 32 539
TOTALS 135 239 209 92 160 155 105 150 149 114 1,508
73% 29% 44% 1% 79% 96% 83% 67% 68% 2% 64%
Proposed new stores and estimated car parking
occupancy — April 2018
Store 0 158 125 0 0 0 0 0 17 13 313
Allocation
Loss of Car
Bays to 0 94 79 0 0 0 0 0 13 12 198
stores
Estimated = | = 750 | 689, | 81% | 71% 79% | 96% 83% 67% 77% 83% 7%
occupancy %

Proposed
new Stores

BEO Shared\Reports\Reports 16\Barbican Estate Market Valuations for Car Parking Spaces & Stores July 2017.docx




/v abed

Large (4sq m) 0 104 85 10 9 208
X Large (6sq

m) 0 27 22 4 2 55
XX Large (8sq

m) 0 27 18 3 2 50
Total 0 158 125 17 13 313

Appendix 3 Stores March 2018

Let

Sold

Total

1,165

/8

1,243

BEO Shared\Reports\Reports 16\Barbican Estate Market Valuations for Car Parking Spaces & Stores July 2017.docx




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



ANDY 4 - TN ENd e GV ALTWT  LroeT ¢

CAR PARKING AND STORES AT THE
BARBICAN ESTATE, LONDON, EC2

Pregarsd for;

CITY OF LONDON

SEPTEMBER 2017

CORFALC
international




MICHAEL BRADLEY
BARBICAN ESTATE OFFICE
3 LAUDERDALE PLACE
LONDON

EC2Y 8EN

Thursday, 30 Novamber 2017
Dear Michas),

Thank you for instructing Farebrother to provida advice In relstion to the rentsl level of your car
parking spaces and storege units at the Barbican Estate. The following report will include; a background
of the Barbican Estate; a schedule of comparsble evidence and our advised prics recommendation for
both car parking and stores.

The purpose of this report ks to provida the City of London with & professional opinion of what level of
rent we wouki recommend be Imposed on the subject car parking spaces and storege units. Wae da not
befleva that It Is appropriate to provide a Red Book valustion st this stage.

10 BACKEROUND, THE BARBICAN ESTATE, EC2

The Barbican Estate is » residential estate, constructed during the 1960s and 1970s. The estate officlally
opened In 1969, located within the City of London in an area once devaststed by World War |l
bombings. Now, the estate comprises thres of London’s tallest residential towers at 42 storeys,
thirteen terrace biocks, two mews and The Postern, Wallside and Milton Court.

Within and surrounding the estate exists the Barbican Arts Centre, the Gulidhall School of Music and
Drama, tha Barbican public library, the Musewun of London, the City of London School for Girls and a
former YMCA, forming the Barbican Complex. In addition, Barbican tube station ks a stone’s throw
awey from the site. Overall, tha 40-acre sstate currently consists of over 2,000 flats, accommodating
sround 4,000 residents. We understand the value of a bedsit In the astate is currently In the region of
£1,000,000.00.

2.0 CARPARKING, THE BARBICAN ESTATE, EC2
21 BACKGROUND, CAR PARxING

Within the 10 car parks available to the residents of the Berbican Estats, there are 1,508 car parking
spaces, 34% of which are currently vacant. Consequently, It has besn anticipated thet 201 of these car
parking spaces will be converted and altemnstively used as storage space, which Is currently In high
demand.

We understand that the current cost of a car parking space stands st £1,285.00 per annum, Inclusive
of the service charge (£926.00 per annum]. You have advised us thet for a number of years the cost of
renting a car parking space was not Incraased but since 2009 the cherges have been incressed based
on the Retall Price Index.

T4 DTG5 455 F 243 20 V34 4382 LY Prean's Bulitings, Londen, ECSA 102 Farebrotheroom




22 SCHEDULE OF COMPARABLE EVIDENCE

Farebrother

Below Is a list of comparsbie car parking spaces In the direct area and the wider London market. It Is
worth noting that wa have Included both Cantral, Eastern and Westem locations and residential
schemes throughout London In this search.

261a Oty £2,600.00 | 45 spaces to rent, avallable to
Road, per perspace | perspace | residents at the Chronicle Towar
islington, spaca only.
London EC1V Car park Is mannad 24/7.
1AH Residents do not pay sny businass
retes or council tax on spaces.
Outside of congestion zone.
Developer has not confirmad
_| value of apartments.
Royal Albert | Lock Side £17.31 | £75.00 £600,00 | 54 spuces to rent, avaliable to
Wharf Waey, Royal | per per space | perspace | residants only. Advised that this
Albert space was the averaga rental value for a
| Wharf, car parking space In East London,
London E16 Price basad on a per weak or per
20 annum basls. Outside of
| congestion zone.
Secure car park but not manned.
Value of apartments: £360,000 -
] - | | £750,000 (£304.00 - £645.65 ;sf)
| Batharsea 3 Kingfisher | £38.46 | £1,600.00 | £2,000 2,300 spaces. Price based on a per
Reach House, per perspace | perspace | week or per annum basis,
Juniper space | foré Only residents can rent tha space
Drive, York months however If there Is space
Road, avaliable, non-rasidents can park
Wandsworth, here too and pay for & ticket.
SWi8 1TX Residents do not pay business
rates or council tax on these
spaces.
| Car park sttendants Monday-
Sunday from 7.00am - 11.00pm.
| Outside of congestion zone.
Value of apartments: £565,000 -
£1,375,000 (£1,172.19 - £1,210.39
| ! p’ﬂ
| Dockheasd | 41 £48.08 | £208.33 | £2,500.00 | These parking spaces are avallable
Dockhead, per perspace | parspace | for both residential and
SE1 28BS space commercial use. 29 commercial

| scaces and 10 residantial.

T +44 20 74054345 F +44 20 Ta03 €162 | £7 Bream'2 Bullalr g8, Londsn, EC4A 182 Farsbrolharcom




nud.rh Inclusive of
basedons
m e,

, Notl residential develo;:ment.
impertal |. 1Simpertal | £42.31 | £183.93 | £2,200.00 | 1,050 spaces. Only offer permits
Wharf Road, per perspacs | perspace | to residents. Car park is manned

| Fulham, space 24/7. Thare ara 1,060 spacas,

London SW6 Price basad on a per snnum bask.
2UB Outside of congestion zone.
Value of apartments: from
£1,000,000.00 - £3,400,000.00
| ) - | (£1,024.59 - £2,059.36)
| 5t George 215t George | £47.79 | £207.08 | £2,485.00 | 569 spaces, car park is manned
Wharf Wharf, per parspace | perspaca | 24/7.Price based on a per annum
London, SW8 | space (residenis) | basks.
2FH £2,982.00 @ Both resitents and non-resiients
perspace | can buy s permit.
(non- No tax s paid.
residents] Outsida of congestion 20na.
Value of apartments: £495,000 -

| ::ﬂ.ooo,muu.sa-smss
Chebea 372 £80.80 | £168.33 | £2,020.00 | Price besad on m par annum basls.
Bridge Queenstown | per perspaca | perspace | 800 spaces.

Wharf Road, spuce Non-residents from the hotel con

London, SWB also pay to usa the spaca.

4rp I Car park Is manned 24/7. No tax Is

wl

| Outside of congestion zons.
Valua of apartments: £385,000 -

| £3,800,000 (£1,180.98 - £1,644.31

. I psf)

Dolphin | Chichester I £1,740.00 | Just over 300 spaces, avalleble to
Square Strast, ‘ - residents and those visiting the
London, ' £2,100.00 | spa.
SW1vValx | parspace  Price depends on the size and
I location.
Price basad on o per annum basls.
| Car park manned 24/7.
Outsida of congestion zone.

Apartments not for sale — lst from
£500-£600 .om.

THA 20 THG A F 444 207453

= o
...'\.:'1] ) L."




23

30
3.1

Farebrother

Taking Into consideration the comparable evidence above, we recommend a value In the region of
£1,750.00 - £2,000.00 per space per annum, Inclusive of the service charge.

Whilst gathering the above comparable evidence, It came to our sttention that most housing
davalopments sell thelr parking spaces opposad to letting tham to thelr residents. Consequently, thers
Is vary little direct comparable evidence. We belleve that Imperial Wharf ks a good direct comparable,
given that they also provide over 1,000 parking spaces which are avallable to residents only, and Is
manned 24/7. However, imperial Wharf Is located outside of the congestion zone, therefore a
reduction from £2,200.00 per space per annum has been made to reflect this, We sre also aware that
there am 5 larga number of vacant spaces, meaning that supply of parking spaces ks In of
demand, further leading to a slight deterioration in their value.

STORES, THE BARBICAN ESTATE, EC2

BACKGROUND, STORES

Currently, there are 1,311 stores avallable to residents at the Barbican Estate. Demand for stores at
the Barbican Estate Is relstively high, reflected by the current Residents Walting list for stores which
consists of 260 people. In response to this high demand, it is anticipated that 316 new resident stores
will be constructed by Summer 2018 mainly In Breton and Bunyan car parks. These stores will replace
201 curvent car parking spaces and will rangs betwean the following skzes:

- TWEOFUNT | sERsQFT | TOTALSUPRLED
Small 43.06 209 ,
~ Medium | 64.6 55 |
Large — - T B 3 -

We understand that the prices of the existing stores are as follows:

| TYPEOPUNIT [SiZE(SQFT)  |RENT | TOTALSUPPUED | LOCATIGN
' Standard 12.92 £313.00 (per | 1,167 Residential
| ‘{L2m(fxim annum) blocia
w) £24.23 (porsuft | |
| Medium (2m @ 32.29 £373.00 (per 100 | Car parks
(1) x 1.5m (w)) annum)
£1155 (parsq ) .
Large2m{Dx 40.90 £440.00 {per “ Car parks
1.9m (w)) annum)
| £10.76 (per sq ft)

T +44 20 74084345 F +44 207454 4252 | 27 Breanye Buiio 38, Lenden, EC4A 1DZ| Farebrother.com




3.2 SCHEDULE OF COMikAii451E EVIDENCE

Balow Is a list of comparable evidence for storage units in London. Itlhauld ﬂmthltthmnn
large companies, oftan with multiple sites, purely set up for storage. Th s

saen below on an inttial discount and then rofling to a standard price t i

occupisrs of thess units are short tarm, hence tha upfront Incantiva. This lhﬂllldlllo benuml In the
analysis a5 they will on the whole work out more expensive on an annual besis.

Court, 12sqft- 12 st 12sqft 1L2sqft- | cheaperand
Peeriess £27.58 lockar - lockaer - £119.52 that although
Street, £119.52 £1,434.24 thess are their
London, general prices
ECIVIEX |SOsqft- 50 sqft S50sqft- | 50sqft- | theyoften
£65.02 locker- £3,381.12 | £67.62 discount ths
£281.76 price. Prices
srebasedona
100sqft- | 100sqft- | 100sqft- | per monthor
£480.96 | £5,771.52 | £57.72 par annum
basls, and are
inclusive of
VAT, not
Insurance.
Withheld any |
further

| , Information, |
BigYellow @ 289 ﬁﬁlqﬂ- 25sqft- | 25qft-  25sqft- | Curvently |
Salf Kennington £46.20 £20020 | £2,402.40 | £96.10 offering 50%
Storsge- | Lane, off first 4-8
Kennington | London 40sqft- 40sqft-  40sqft- |40sqft— | weeks
SE115QY | £51.00 £221.00 | £2,652.00 | £66.30 depending on
ske. Prices on
a parweskor
per annum
basls, and sre
inclusiva of
VAT but not
Insurance. If
you sign up for
a year you gat
5% off of your
rent and
insurance,

T +44 50 T405 4545 F +44 00 7434 4332 | 27 Brzanv's Buikdings, Lorden, ECHA 102 | Farstrathanca



Farebrother

Wil not give
Information
regarding
| vacancy rate.
| Gave
estimation
that 40%
spend less
than 6 months
here.

 Attlc self-
storage

500 Wick

Lane,
London |
2TB

Accass Self
Storage

48/48A
Eagle
Wharf
Road,

islington,
N17ED

T +4420 TA05 4545 F 444 20 T404 4

60agft-
£60.00

85qfi-
£63.25

10sqft
- £15.77

asSsqft-
£32.81

S50sqft-
£42.18

25sqft-
£156.00

60sqft-

85uqft-
£448.00

110sqft-

35sqft-
£142.20

508sqft-
£182.76

2 | 27 Bizany's Builzings,

253q ft -
£1,872.00

&0ght-
£3,600.00

85sqft-
£5,976.25

10 i

£819.84

35sqft-
£1,705.36

SOsqit-
£2,193.16

25sqft-
£74.88

85sqft-
£63.25

10sqft-
£81.98

35sqft-
£43.75

First 4 weeks
free. Prices on
& per annum
basis, and are
Inclusiva of
VAT but not
nsurance.

If you sign up
for 1 yesr you
get 4 weeks
free and 10%
off each
month.
Vecancy rate
confidantial,
60% of thoss
who rent
storage space
spend 3-6
months here.

Basedon 10
| sqft @ £8.54
pw first 8
weeks, £17.08
per week
thereafter
5qft@
£17.77 pw first
8 weels,
£35.54 per
week
thareafter
S0sgft®
£22.85 pw first
8 weeks,
£45.69
thereafter
inclusive of
VAT, not

), ECJA D2 Fareb




estimation

that 20% of
people rent

this storage on
a long-term
basls (for more
then 6
‘monthsi. |

Alongside close analysis of the comparable avidence above, we have taken into consideration that the
Barbican Estate’s storage units within the car parks are manned 24/7 by an on-site conclenge, and that
they are In very close proximity to tha residents’ aparimants. Consaquantly, a significant upift In the
current rent for storage bs needed. We have also considered that the comparable evidence listad
consists of companies who run a business solaly dedicated to providing storege space; in some cases,
thay even pack and provide transport at an Inclusive rate to customers. As a result, the comparable
storage units will be let at a higher prics,

It Is important to note thet the current pricas of existing storage units are historic figures and no
Justification can be provided as to why thay were set st this level. Our price recommendation for the
storage units at the Barbican Estate has baen basad on the comparable evidence found. When taking
into account the nature of the storaga units and the service thet Is provided with them, we belleve
thet Access Seif Storage Is the most direct comparable and have thersfore. based our price
recommendation on thelr annusl rate.

Following consideration that generally incentives equete to £150.00 off of tha total rent per annum,
alongside the costs Incurred through running the business (including service, VAT, land tax), we have
deducted a total of £500.00 from the value we arrived at through the use of comperable evidance.

TH+I420 T3 4345 F 444037 22| &7 Brearts Buildings, Losdon, ECZATDZ | Farsbrothercam




Farebrother

The prices we recommend are lald out in the following table:

-:...-..-I ._..-.I:" L
£647.55 (per

£712.305 (per 1,167
Standerd (per annum) | annum) annum) blocks
{L.2m{0) £24.28 (per | £50.12 (parsq | £55.13 (persq ft)
xim(w)) 5 ft) ft
Current | 32.29 | £373.00 £1,204.91 (per | £1,325.40 (per 100 Car parks
Medium {perannum) | annum) annum)
(2m{hx £11.55 (per | £37.32 (persqg | £41.05 (per sq ft)
1.5m qf) ft)
w)) = |
Current | 40.50 £440.00 £1,659.52 (per | £1,82547 (per a4 Car parks
Large (per annum) | annum) annum}
(2m () x £10.76 (per | £40.58 (persq | £44.63 (peragfi)
1.9m sqit) ft)
(w)) N
Proposed | 43.06 | N/A £1,773.57 [par | £1,950.93 (per | 209 TBC
Standerd annum) annum)
(2m{N x £41.20 (persq | £45.31 {persq fi)
2miw)) _ L N : =
Proposed | 64.6 | N/A £2,569.79 (per | £2,826.77 (per 55 TBC
Medium annum) annum)
{2m{l} x £39.78 (persq | £43.76 (persqft)
3(w)) f)
Proposad | 86.1 ' N/A £3,591.47 (per | £3,950.62 (per 52 TBC
Large annum) annum) |
(2m(l} x £4171(persq | £45.88 (paruq ft)
amw) | | ft) | |

Furthermore, we recommend that the storage units based within the car parks are let at a highsr rent
than those within the residentlal biocks, due to the car parks being more sacure as they are manned
24/7. We belleve that a 10% uplift In value Is sultable to reflect the incentive of having 24-hour service
and the staffing costs.

If planning permission is granted for the storage units within the car parks to be occupled by non-
residents living within a 0.5-mile radius of the Barbican Estate, then this potential Increase In demand
may reflect a price increase In the region of 10 - 20%,

T +4420 V4054545 F +44 20 7434 43532 | 27 Bream’s Buildings, Lendsn, EC4A 102 | Farebrather.cam




4.0 WHY FAREBROTHER

Thank you for choosing Farebrother. Wa feel wa can add real value ldvllluco‘;TMm value of your
car parking apaces and stores for the following reasons: LONDOH

» Farebrother Is an established Practice of Real Estate advisers and Chartered Surveyors who have
opersted In Midtown since 1799 and have been tha nichs locel leasing specialists for over 50 years.

= Working across Central London snd the UK, Farebrother specialise in London Midtown, Our sevvices
Include providing Leasing, Seles & Davelopmant; Investment; Lease Advisory; Occupler Services and
Property Asset Managament advics across » range of commerclal, retall and rasidentisl assets or
portfolios.

s Farsbrother have worked on a number of instructiona from the City of London In the area previously,
including the lettings of offices at Temple Chambers, EC4, 83 Shoe Lane, EC4, and 36-38 Whitefriars
Street, EC4. Wa are also currently merketing 25 Holborn Viaduct, ECI.

Thank you again for giving us the opportunity to report on this project and we hope that the above
Includas all the Information you require. Wa look forward to discussing this with you once you have
hed a chance to review.

Kind regards,

FAREBROTHER

T 44390 74054545 F #4420 7404 62321 27 Braam's Buflidings, Londin, ECSA 102 Farchrother.com




G

GERALDEVE

72 Welback Street London W1Q QAY

Michael Bradley Tel. 020 7493 3338

Princlpal Surveyor

City Surveyor's Department
Clty of London

PO Box 270

Guildhall

London

EC2P 2EJ

18 September 2017
Our ref: CWA/A13935

Dear Michael
Barbican Estate — Car Parking & Storage Opinlon of Rental Value

Further to our previous correspondence and our site Inspection on Wednesday 23 August, we have
undertaken our Initlal research Into rental levels for residential parking and domestic self-storage, and are
now pleased to report our findings.

Resldential Parking

Woe understand that the Barbican estate was originally built with residents’ parking provision. Whilst the
apartments were sold on long leases the parking has always been offered to residents of the estate on
annual licence and in addition residents can ‘'buy’ spaces at a premium. For the avoidance of doubt our
advice Is limited to the former, spaces subject to an annual licence, and not the ‘owned’ spaces.

We understand that the spaces can only be let by the City of Londen (as landiord) to residents of the
Barbican estates due to planning restrictions. You have further confirmed that it is unlikely that the planners
would ease this restriction. In comparison to many recently completed developments the amount of parking
provision across the Barbican Estate appears very high for a central London development with few recent
developments providing the same amount of parking. This, along with a decline in car ownership, has led to
8 significant vacancy rate within the car parks.

In reviewing relevant evidence we have therefore had regard to residential developments where there are at
least 20 spaces that were constructed as part of the development, are secure and under cover. In recent
years most residential developments that have residents’ parking have had the parking ‘sold’ as part of the
long-leaseholds of individual flats by means of a right to park.

The parking spaces are currently let on annual tenancies inclusive of service charge. We have been
provided with a copy of your standard lease we assume the terms of this would not be varied {except as to
the level of rent). We believe that the following comparabla illustrate the cost of an annual licence within
residential developments in a Central London location, along with an indicative capltal value of the dwellings
within the development, by way of a rate per square foot for a two bedroom flat — where available.

Gerald Eve LLP Is a Imiied llabllty partnership registered In England and Wales {registered number OC328470) and Is regulated by RICS,
The term partner Is used to refer to a member of Gerald Eve LLP or an employes or consultant with squivalent standing and qualiiications,
A liet of members and non-members who are designated as partners |s open to Inepection at cur registered office; 72 Welbeck Street,
London W1G OAY and on our wabalte.

Page 59



GERALDEVE

One Tower Bridge SE1 up to £4,420 per space per annum (capltal value £1,925 psf)

This is probably some of the most expensive parking within a residential development. The ‘Conran
Designed’ parking is within the recently completed One Tower Bridge development. The parking is restricted
to the development's residents only and falis within the congestion charging zone. The parking has achleved
rates of between £46 and £85 per space per week.

Eim Park Gardens SW10 £4,680 per space per annum (capital value £1,770 psf)
Located between the Fulham and King's roads Eim Park Gardens was constructed with secure underground

parking for its residents. The parking is not restricted to current residents and not within the congestion
charge zone. The rate equates to £80 per space per week

Neo Bankside SE1 £3,278 per space per annum (capital value £1,685 psf)

This development Is Inmediately adjacent to Tate modem and located within the congestion charge zone.
The parking Is modern purpose built secure underground parking. The rete equates to £63 per space per
week.

St George's Wharf SW8 £2,485 per space per annum (capital value £1,230 psf)

Located in Vauxhall southwest London and part of the same development as “The Tower” (the tallest
residential building in the country), spaces are not restricted to residents but non-residents pay a +18%
premium on of the basic charge. The resident’s rate equates to £48 per space per week.

| Wharf SW6 £2,200 per space per annum {capltal value £1,030 psf)
Imperial Wharf is a modern development located in the fashionable area of Chelsea Harbour. Car parking in
this west London development are restricted to residents only. The rate equates to £42 per space per week.

Chelsea Bridge Wharf SW8 £2,020 per space per annum {capital value £1,190 psf)
Located next to Battersea Park and close to the Nine Elms development area centres on Battersea Power

Station, these spaces are not restricted to residents but non-residents pay a premium on of the basic charge.
The resident's rate equates to £39 per space per week.

Hoffman Square, Chart Sireet N1 £1,820 per space per annum
Located near Old Street this secure car park is restricted to residents of the residential units. The car park

falls outside the congestion charge zone. The rate equates to £35 per space per week.

101 Pentonville Road N1 £1,820 per space per annum (capital value £875 psf)
This deveiopment is just within the congestion charge and close to Angel tube station. The parking Is secure

within this gated development. The rate equates to £35 per space per week.

Angelis Apartments. Graham Street N1 £1,560 per space per annum (capital value £850 psf)
Located just north of the congestion charging zone this development is located on the City Road Basin and

provides secure underground parking. The rate equates to £30 per space per week.

Riverside West, Smugglers Wav SW18 £1,320 per space (capital value £780 psf)
Located adjacent to Wandsworth Bridge the development comprises over 500 apartments. The car parking

is secure and manned 24 hours, non-residents can park at a premium.

Paga 2

Page 60



GERALDEVE

Seraph Court, Morland Street EC1 £1,300 per space per annum

Also located within the congestion charging zone, spaces within this secure covered car park are available to
the general public and achieve rates of between £25 and £28 per space per week. This is the closest
comparabie to the Barbican estate.

406 Seven Sisters Road N4 £1,040 per space per annum {capital value £720 psf)
This parking is restricted to residents and outside the congestion charging zone. The rate equates to £20 per
space per week.

In addition we are aware that City of London residents can purchase a 12 month discounted season ticket for
the corporation’s car parks for a one-off annual charge of £800. Although Barblcan residents who choose
this option may not have the benefit of 24 hour security and direct access to thelr flats.

Domestic Storage

For the purposes of our research we have had regard to faclliies providing self-storage to the general public
that are manned and are accessible slther 24 hours & day or on a resfricted basls. These facilities provide
individual lockable units, rather than any form of communal storage or facility that Is not directly accessible
by the customers. We feel that this reflects the way the existing storage and proposed additicnal units
operate.

The domestic self-storage market is clearly segmented. The market leaders, such as Access Storage and
Big Yellow Storage, have developed and operate purpose built storage facllities, that provide ful staffing,
have the longest opening house (many being 24 hours per day), and additional services such as shops
providing packing materials. Being purpose bullt the facilities they operate from have goods lift and level
access to all fioors, individual unit alarms and provide goods trolley and cages for customers to move their
belongings around the facllity.

The other end of the market Is typified by smaller operators who may have only a single or few facllities.
These tend to have been retrofitted within older warehousing or converted from other uses such as rallway
arches. The facliities tend to be more limited particularly in respect of access within the bullding as they may
lack modern goods lifts.

We have observed that all storage facilities provide uniis of comparetively standard sizes with ‘locker’ type
units of between 9sq ft and 15sq ft, and larger ‘unit’ of 25, 50, 60 (or 65) and 75 square feet. Considering the
sizes of your existing storage and proposed units we have had particular regard to prices of 10sq ft ‘lockers’
and units of between 50eq ft and 76 sq ft. The following are a selection of self-storage facilities in the vicinity
with the standard costs of a 12 month contract including VAT and mandatory insurance.

Thlsls the closest self-storage faclnty to the Barblcan It Is located under a residential bullding (Paterson
Court) and Is a conversion of existing basement storage areas within the building.

Size 756 sq ft 60 sq ft 10sqft
Rate £62.03 psfpa £65.37 psfpa £107.66 psf pa

Page 3

Page 61



GERALDEVE

e - Malden nt, Chalk F:
Thig facility is most similar to the Barbican being In the former car park {not functioning) of the Denton

Estate, on a single level with na lift.
Size 100 sq ft 50 sq ft 12 gq ft 8sqft

Rate £33.72psfpa £50.52 psfpa £107.00 psf pa £126.00 psf pa

An older warehousa bmldlng reiroﬂtted to prowde self-storage facilities and shop.
Size 75sqft 60 sq ft 10 sq ft

Rate £82.92 psfpa £88.70 psfpa £211.33 pef pa

Another olderwarehouse bwldlng retroﬁtted to provide self-storage facllites and shop.

Size T5sqft 80 sq ft 10 sq ft

Rate £62.08 psfpa £67.60 psfpa £150.00 psf pa

Al If -

Again this is an older warehouse building that has been reirofitted as a self-storage facllity.
Size 65sqft 10 5q fi

Rate £60.00 psfpa £163.80 psf pa

Big Yellow = 400 Wick | Bow. London E3

An example of the highest quality self-storage facility, this is a modem Purpose bullt multi-storey facility with
ample parking and on-site shop.

Size 50 sq ft 15 8q fi 10 sq ft
Rate £66.98 psfpa £95.41psfpa £113.36 psf p§
1st for = Carlisl

The poorest style of self-storage, located In railway arches close to Westminster and Waterloo station, there
is no dedicated on-site parking.

Size 60 sq ft 10 sq ft
Rate £38.04 psfpa £93.60 psfpa

Opinion of Rental Values

Considering the evidence provided above, our opinions of the rental value for the Barbican parking and
storage are:

Barbican Parking

The evidence we have discovered suggests whilst the primary factor for determining market levels is
location, in addition good quality parking provided within a well-managed development — with dedicated 24
hour parking attendants — generally achieves a premium on the charges in the inmediate vicinity. The

Page 4

Page 62



GERALDEVE

Barblcan estate Is located within the congestion charging zone and comparables we have Identifled within
the zone suggest a charge of between £25 and £35 per week, for basic secure parking. To this we consider
that a premium would be appropriate to reflact the Barbican’s better facilities — specifically in respect of them
being manned 24 hours — and that thelr market rent could be in the region of £2,000 per annum, based on
the capital value of the dwellings within the estate.

Without undertaking a thorough survey of all the spaces within the car parks it is difficult to give any firm
advice in respect of discounts for non-standard spaces. However, if & space is capable of accommodating a
normal sized private car without difficulty it would appear that there would be little rationale for this. In
addition, we do not consider that the condition of the Barbican's parking would warrant a discount from
observable market levels.

Barbican Storage (existing lockers)
The evidence suggests that ‘locker’ units — of between 8sq ft and 15sq ft should let between at £110 and

£210 per square foot per annum. We consider that glven the age of the units the relatively restricted access
within the blocks and lack of goods lift to these areas of the buildings the lockers in the Barbican estate
should be let at the bottom of this range {ie £110 per square foot per annum).

Barbican Storage (car park unjts)

You are proposing to create units of 43, 65 and 86 square fest within the car parks across the Barbican
estate. The evidence suggests that self-storage facllities In this size range would let in the market at
between £34 and £88 per sq foot per annum, for standard quality accommodation, depending on size.
However, wa conslder the fact that none of the car parks Is proposed o be wholly converted into a self-
storage facility, and that the units will be within still functioning car parks impacts on their value. We
therefore consider that an appropriate range of rates (depending on size) would be £33.60 and £60.00 per
sq foot per annum, or annual charges for the proposed units of:

43 sg ft £60.00 psf £2,580 per annum
65sqft £42.80 psf £2,780 per annum
8Bsqft £33.60 psf £2,890 per annum

Although a clear discounting of rent, based on their size, is observable in the market, we understand that you
anticipate that the greatest demand will be for the largest units. Accordingly, when you bring the storage
units to the market you may want to price them as you observe demand to be. The charges we have quoted
for the comparable self-storage facilities are the quoted retalil prices, nevertheless individual facilities are
generally able to offer discounted rates if they have over-supply of a specific size as they aim to maximise
cccupancy and are therefore happy to reduce prices to an extent to achieve this.

In none of our estimates have we made any ‘resident’ discount, either on the basis that the uge of these
facilities Is limited by planning (which we understand only applies to the parking) or to reflect the
Corporation’s relationship with its residents. Our estimates are therefore at market levels. Given the number
of potential residents within the Barblcan estate who could use the parking, we do not believa that the market
is artificially restricted to the extent that the corporation as landlord would need to discount from market
levels. In addition you have the option to convert spaces to alternative uses, as you are proposing to do with
the storage units. Notwithstanding this, you may nonetheless choose to provide a residents’ discount to

Page 5

Page 63



GERALDEVE

reflect the wider landiord and tenant or resident relationships, multiple parking spaces being taken by
Individual residents, level of current vacancy or other factors you consider appropriate.

We realise that the estimates provided would represent Increases to the charges currently made to

residents. You may therefore want to consider an appropriate phasing of any increases to charges adopted,
and instigate a periodic review of market rents to ensure that charges follow the market in the future.

| trust that this provides some asslstance in assessing rents within the Barblcan estate, do not hesitate to
contact me If you require anything further.

Yours sincerely

Charles Wacher
Partner

cwacher@geraldeve.com
Direct tel. +44 (0)20 7333 6275

Page 6

Page 64



Appendix 5 Worked examples of car park charges & forecasted income & costs

current rent* 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

current rent 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

As at Sept 2017 rates* 1258 1422 1586 1750 1258 1505 1752 2000

No of standard bays 647 615 584 555 647 615 584 555

(assumes 5% reduction pa)

current  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 current  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

INCOME £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Residential rent * 814 844 900 949 814 870 974 1067

Commercial rent 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109

Service charge (sold bays) ** 285 285 285 285 285 285 285 285

Fees*** 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69

Total 1277 1307 1363 1412 1277 1333 1437 1530
) Total Expenditure (1,659) (1,659) (1,659) (1,659) (1,659) (1,659) (1,659) (1,659)
(©|NET INCOME (382) (352) (296)  (247) (382) (326) (222) (129)
D
O *hased on number of let residential bays & rent increases in Sept

** number of sold bays assumes no change

*** tamporary parking and admin fees assumes no change

Car Parking assumptions current rent 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Rent per bay increases phased and effective Sept each year £ £ £ £

Lower region rate (Farebrother) 1258 1422 1586 1750

Upper region rate (Gerald Eve) 1258 1505 1752 2000

Average No of standard bays - assumed decrease 5% per year 647 615 584 555

during phased increases

No of sold bays 283 283 283 283

Commercial bays 39 39 39 39




EXPENDITURE as at 2018/19 budget

Staff (1,008)
Repairs and Maintenance (145)
Rates & Water (69)
Cleaning (16)
Energy (27)
Supplies and Services (112)
Computers Recharge (22)
Insurance (34)
Supervision and Management (167)
Technical Services (10)
Sub- Total (1,509)
Capital Charges#

Operational Buildings

Notional Interest (150)
Total (150)
Total Expenditure (1,659)

99 abe




Appendix 6 Worked examples of stores charges & potential income & costs

New Rates Stores

)9 abed

Phased increase over 3 years

Additional Information

EXPENDITURE 2018/19
£

Repairs and Maintenance (17)
Cleaning (6)
Supervision and Management (30)
Technical Services (2)
Total (55)
Capital Charges

Operational Buildings Notional Interest (167)
Equipment Notional Interest (19)
Equipment Depreciation (28)
Total (214)
Total Expenditure (269)

Current Stores current rent* 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
sq ft £/sqft £/ store £ £ £ £
Standard 13 40 520 313 382 451 520
Medium 32 40 1280 373 675 977 1280
Large 41 40 1640 440 840 1240 1640
*as at September 2017 rates
INCOME no of stores £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Standard 1029 322 304 364 425
Medium 98 37 44 69 94
Large 38 17 21 34 47
Misc (ser chge, lockers admin) 8 8 8 8
Sub-total 383 376 475 573
Note
Income 2018/19 onwards reduced by 15% to reflect probable transfers
Rent are increased in September each year
78 stores have been sold and the income is included in 'misc'
New stores current 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
sq ft £/sqft £/store £ £ £ £
Large 43 40 1720 0 1720 1720 1720
X large 61 40 2440 0 2440 2440 2440
XX large 86 40 3440 0 3440 3440 3440
INCOME# no of stores £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Large 208 0 143 304 304
X large 55 0 54 114 114
XX large 50 0 69 146 146
Sub-total 0 266 564 564
#assumes 40% occupancy 2018/19, 85% occupancy 2019/20 & 2020/21
TOTAL INCOME 383 642 1039 1138
EXPENDITURE (269) (269) (269) (269)
NET INCOME 114 373 770 869




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda Iltem 9

‘Committees: Dates: ]
Barbican Residents Consultation Committee 21 May 2018
Barbican Residential Committee 4 June 2018
'Subject: Non-Pubilic
Fire Safety Review
'Report of: For Declsion
Andrew Carter by Barbican
Director of Community & Children's Services Residential
Commiittee
Report author:
Pauf Murtagh
Assistant Director Barbican and Property Services

Summary

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the work that has been done on
potential improvement works to enhance the safety of the City of London Corporation’s
(CoLC's) Barbican Residential Estate and its residents in the event of fire. The report
also seeks the views of, and guidance from Members on the strategic direction the
CoLC should take in its future approach to fire safety.

Recommendations

The Committee Is asked to:

1. Note, consider and discuss the work that has been done on potential improvement
works to enhance the safety of the Barbican Residential Estate and Its residents In
the event of fire.

2. Note the compietion of the 2018 Fire RlIsk Assessments for the Barbican
Residential Estate and the major areas of improvement identified.

3. Provide advice and guidance to officers on the strategic direction the CoLC should
take in its approach to fire safety on the Barbican Residential Estate.

4. Agree the recommendation of the Director of Community and Children’s Services
to consider the retro-fitting of sprinklers to the three high-rise tower blocks on the
Barbican Estate subject to funding and planning approval.

Main Report

Background

1. Aninitial paper was presented to the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) at its
meeting on 11 September 2017, which outlined the actions we had taken in the
immediate aftermath of the Grenfell Tower fire and set out our plans for further

Page 69



action. Further update reports were brought back to this Committee In November
2017 and in March 2018.

The initial paper presented to the BRC in September 2017. and all subsequent
update reports, informed Members of the CoLC's position, and the progress made,
with matters such as:

fire risk assessments,

communication with residents,

estate management,

fire safety maintenance and improvement works,
inspections by the London Fire Brigade (LFB),
potentlal future improvement works.

Questions were raised about the potential use of sprinkler systems and the
installation of fire alarms in high-rise blocks of flats. The CoL.C's high-rise flats on
the Barbican Estate do not currently have such systems. As part of the review of
current processes and procedures relating to fire safety in its homes, research has
been done into these, and other areas of improvements. The results are outlined
in this report.

At its meeting on 11 May 2018, the Community and Children’s Services Committee
approved, in principle, to install sprinklers in its five social housing high-rise tower
blocks at:

Great Arthur House, Golden Lane Estate,
Petticoat Tower, Middiesex Street,

Waest Point, Avondale Square Estate, -
Central Polnt, Avondale Square Estate,
East Point, Avondale Square Estate.

e ® 9 5 @

Conslderations

5.

This report has been prepared following a review of the CoLC's processes and
procedures relating to fire safety in its homes to ensure that they remain robust
and fit for purpose and its residents remain safe.

The report has been prepared and produced in conjunction with the CoLC's Fire
Safety Adviser and with Input and guidance from other colleagues across various
depariments.

Automatic Water Fire Suppression Systems (Sprinklers})

7. Regulations in England mean that only buildings constructed since 2007 and which

are taller than 30 metres, are required to have sprinklers fitted. This requirement
was not applied retroactively. None of the CoLC’s eight residential tower blocks
(three on the Barbican Estate and five social housing blocks) are fitted with
sprinklers.

Page 70



8. Itis generally well documented and accepted that a sprinkler system is one of the
most effective tools available to prevent the spread of fire in high-rise blocks of
flats. The installation of sprinkiers in high-rise blocks of flats has significant benefits
in¢cluding:

enhancing the safety of occupants and firefighters in the event of fire in the
property,

reducing the costs of a fire on local authorities and other property owners
affected;

reducing the financlal consequences and other burdens associated with
fires;

reducing the demands on fire and rescue, police and ambulance/health
services responding to events and the aftermath of major fires in high-rise
accommodation;

helping address shortcomings in other fire protection measures such as
compartmentation.

8. There have, historically, however been real issues and concerns with the retro-
fitting of sprinkler systems, which is why they have not been installed in any great
numbers in the past. These issues include:

o the cost of retro fitting sprinkler systems is considered to be extremely
expensive and infrusive,

» the process is intrusive for residents and may require them to leave their home
due to the nature of the works,

o ‘the retro fitting of sprinklers into existing buildings is very difficult to achieve in
terms of structural problems, water storage, etc,

o retro fitting sprinkler systems is very difficult to achieve in historic buildings or
buildings with planning restrictions.

10.As part of the review of its processes and procedures, and to give Members a
realistic appraisal of the potential retro-fitting of sprinkler systems, the ColLC
commissioned an independent feaslbility study into the fitting of sprinkler systems
into its eight tower blocks. The study was carried out by Butler & Young Associates,
a speciafist independent firm of mechanical and electrical consulting engineers.
The firm's findings are attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

11.For the purpose of this report, the focus is on the three tower blocks that form part
of the Barbican Residential Estate namely:

Lauderdale Tower:
Cromwell Tower:
Shakespeare Tower.

12.The feasibility study concludes that from a practical point of view, the retro-fitting
of a sprinkler system can be achieved without undue complications and without the
need to decant residents. The one potential exception to this is the need to comply
with planning restrictions, which is particularly pertinent to the Barbican Estate. At
this stage, this potential complication has not been explored in any great detail.

Page 71



13.The feasibility study also gives indications of the total cost for both tenant and
leaseholder fiats, which do not include fees, VAT and on-going malntenance costs.
These are summarised in the table below:

|

| Block Units Cost

’_Tauderdale Tower 117 _ £613,818

| Shakespeare Tower 118 £608,764

‘ Cromwell Tower 111 £581,694 il
| Total: ] | 344 | £1,804,276

14. It is worth noting that the cost of Installing sprinklers has already increased as a
result of the response to demand from the sector. There is already a concem that
aven with the current demand for sprinklers, there will soon be a skills shortage in
this area. This, and the increase in costs, will likely become even more significant
If the anticipated changes to the current regulatory system and to the Building
Regulations include the retro-fitting of sprinklers.

15.As outlined previously, there is no legal obligation on the CoLC to consider the
retro-fitting of sprinklers in Its tower blocks on the Barbican Estate. The recently
completed fire risk assessments do not support the installation of sprinklers in the
Barbican tower blocks either as a suitable fire precaution or, as part of a fire
evacuation strategy.

16.The CoLC’s Fire Safety Adviser has provided his views and advice on the Issue of
installing sprinklers and his views are attached as Appendix 2 to this report.

Fire Doors

17.As Members will be aware from previous reports on fire safety presented to this
Committee, the vast majority of front entrance doors to individual flats in our
residential blocks of flats are as originally installed. As such, it is expected that
these doors will provide a notional 15 to 20 minutes fire resistance. While this does
not comply with the current Building Regulations for new-build properties, this in
itsolf does not mean that the doors must be changed. However, if a fire risk
assessment carried out under the provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety)
Order 2005, determines that the doors require upgrading to maintain the required
leve! of compartmentation, then the doors must be replaced.

18.As part of the work we have been doing in relation to fire safety, we identified a
small number of front entrance doors from properties on the Barbican Estate to be
sent away for destructive fire resistance testing. There are very few testing facilities
in the country that offer this service and those that do, including the Bullding
Research Establishment (BRE), have had serious capacity issues.

19.We had originally been advised that the doors could be submitted for testing at the
beginning of March. Unfortunately, due to the capacity issues referred to above,
this date was put back several times. At the time this report was written, the testing
is due to take place on Saturday 2 June, which means that the resuits are not

Page 72



avallabie for Incorporation into this report. However, if the testing goes ahead as
scheduled, a verbal update will be given at this meeting.

20.1t is only when we have the results of the destructive testing on the doors and
screens that we can finalise decisions on the future fire safety strategy for the
Barbican Estate.

Fire Alarms

21.As has been reported on several occasions previously, the LFB continues to advise
against the installation of fire alarms in communal areas. However, as part of the
work we have been doing on fire safety, we have considered the potential
installation of fire alarms in the common parts of our tower blocks and other blocks
of flats set against the specific legislation and the guidance available at the time.

22.Early waming of a fire is an essential part of ensuring that residents can evacuste
safely from their flats. The success of smoke aiarms in reducing the number of
casualties from fires in dwellings is well documented. The provision of appropriate
smoke (and sometimes heat) alarms is now considered a basic component of fire
safety in flats. Through a programme of electrical testing across all of its social
housing estates, the CoL.C Is installing hard-wired carbon monoxide, smoke and
heat detectors in all its tendnted flats.

23. Although purpose-built blocks of flats are not normally provided with communai fire
detection and alarm systems, there are exceptions. The most common example Is
a sheltered housing scheme. However, this is a ‘special case’ and even then, a
‘stay-put’ policy is normal.

24.1n blocks of flats that are designed to support a ‘stay-put’ policy (as is the case with
all our blocks), it is accepted that a fire alarm system Is unnecessary and
undesirable. Such a system will inevitably lead to a proliferation of false alarms,
imposing a burden on fire and rescue services and, ultimately, lead to residents
ignoring wamings of what could be genuine fires. In addition, the ability to
effectivély manage a fire alarm system is rarely possible in a block of flats, unless
it is staffed at all times.

25.The very clear advice is that fire alarms should only be fitted in existing blocks of
flats where there is clear justification, and only as a last resort for exampie, when
it is impossible to upgrade other measures to enable a ‘stay-put’ policy.

26. Notwithstanding the above, for the purpose of completeness in terms of the
Barbican tower blocks, we have received information on the cost of installing fire
alarms in the communal areas as summarised below:

 Block Units  Cost B
Lauderdaie Tower 117 £270,000 ]
Shakespeare Tower 116 £265,000
Cromwell Tower 111 - £260,000
Total: 344 £795,000

Page 73



27. 1t should also be noted, that if a sprinkler system was to be fitted in the tower blocks,

there is even less reason or need for a full fire alarm system to be installed.

Fire Risk Assessments (FRAs)

28.As Members will be aware, Frankham Risk Management Services Limited was

commissioned to carry out new FRAs for all residential blocks on the Barbican
Estate. These new FRAs are very detailed and cover not only those areas
previously inspected, but also any further areas of concern raised since the
Grenfell Tower fire.

20 Previous FRAs carried out on the CoLC's residential blocks have been a Type 1

as required by legislation. The new FRAs are Type 3, which go beyond the
requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. Type 3 FRA's
cover everything required for a Type 1 FRA but also provide for an assessment of
the arrangements for means of ascape and fire detection (smoke alarms, heat
detectors, etc.) within a sample of the flats (typically around 10%). A Type 3 FRA
Is non-destructive but the fire resistance of doors to rooms and compartmentation
within the flat is considered.

30. Frankhams has very recently submitted the new FRAs for the Barbican Residential

31.

Estate. Officers are now working on developing detailed action plans for each of
the residential blocks to ensure that the works required are completed in a timely
manner In line with the FRA’s recommendations. It Is hoped that at the time of this
meeting, we will produce for Members consideration a ‘Specific Hazard
Identification and Action Plan Template for Fire Risk Assessments', which lists the
recommendations from all the FRA's on our Barbican residentlal blocks. This is
intended as an overview of all the recommendations on all the residential blocks.

In general terms, the new FRA's have not identified any major areas of concern at
this stage with the main areas of improvement or further work identified
summarised as:

e further work to identify the integrity of front entrance doors and screens Interms
of fire resistance,;

e implementation of an appropriate programme of periodic electrical testing of
fixed wiring installation;

o further work to establish levels of compartmentation/fire stopping within false
ceilings between individual dwellings and communal areas;
improved signage;
overhaul of doors to communal areas and lobby doors to ensure they close
properly to maintain compartmentation;
periodic testing of mechanical extraction in kitchen areas;
further work to identify integrity of vertical ducting particularly in relation to
potential alterations carried out by residents that may have compromised levels
of compartmentation.

32_|t should be noted however, that the final action plans for each block will, possibly

to a significant extent, be affected by decisions taken by this Committee as a result
of this report. It is intended, subject to the approval of this Committee, that the

Page 74



FRA's and resulting action plans should be available for publishing by the first week
in July.

Leaseholder Recharges for Fire Safety Improvement Works

33.The issue of recharging leaseholders for fire safety improvement works is a key
consideration for the CoLC particularly on the Barbican Estate. We have
approximately 2030 long leaseholders in our residential blocks on the Barbican
Estate. Whether or not they can be recharged for potential improvement works
such as the installation of sprinklers, replacement of fire doors and so on will have
a significant bearing on the affordability of such measures and the financial burden
for the CoLC and the leaseholders themselves..

34.Given the importance of this matter, Counsel's opinion has been sought on the
ability of the CoLC to recharge leaseholders for fire safety works. A report will be
presented to this Committee In due course.

Collaborative Working

35.8ince the Grenfell Tower tragedy, several opportunities have arisen for
representatives of the London Councils to get together to discuss the various
approaches they are taking to ensure processes and procedures relating to fire
safety in their homes remain robust and fit for purpose.

36.0ne such opportunity is the London Housing Directors’ Fire Safety Sub-Group,
which the CoLC is a member of. Through its membership, the CoLC has, for
example, had the opportunity to contribute to a response to the interim report on
the Grenfell Tower tragedy issued by Dame Judith Hackitt. We have also been able
to discuss with other London Council’s topics such as ACM cladding (the type
installed at Grenfell Tower), fire safety Improvement measures such as fire doors
and sprinklers and leaseholder recharges.

37.In general terms, most of the other London Council's face the same issues as the
CoLC and are embarking on similar courses of action. Many of the other London
Council's do have problems with ACM cladding on their residential blocks and are
at various stages of removing and replacing It.

38.For comparison purposes, the work other London Councils are doing in relation to -
fire safety improvements includes:

» Hammersmith and Fulham - installing sprinklers in all its high-rise blocks with
no charge to leaseholders,

o Wandsworth - installing sprinklers in 99 high-rise blocks with the intention of

recharging leaseholders,

Croydon - fitting sprinklers in 25 high-rise blocks,

Westminster - fitting sprinkiers in high-rise blocks,

Waltham Forest - fitting sprinklers in high-rise blocks,

Enfield - fitting sprinklers in high-rise blocks,

Harringay ~ not fitting sprinklers,

Lewisham — not fitting sprinkiers.

Page 75



Financlal Implications

39. As outlined earlier in this report under the heading “Leaseholder Recharges for Fire
Safety Improvement Works”, the issue of recharging leaseholders for fire safety
improvement works Is a key conslderation for the CoLC. With approximately 2030
long leaseholders in our residential blocks on the Barbican, whether they can be
recharged for potential improvement works such as the installation of sprinklers,
replacement of fire doors and so on will have a significant bearing on the
affordability of such measures and the financial burden for the CoLC.

Legislation

40.All the CoLC's residential blocks on the Barbican Estate complied fully with the
requirements of the Bullding Regulations at the time of their construction. Given
that the Bullding Regulations are not retrospective, they remain compliant.

41.lssues do arise however where, as a result of a FRA carried out under the
provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, deficiencies are
highlighted in the structure of the building undermining the required level of
compartmentation In relation to fire safety. In such cases, these deficiencies must
be addressed and remedied, and it is no defence to argue that the bullding
complied with the Building Regulations at the time it was built.

42.In the aftermath of the Grenfell Tower tragedy, further concems were again raised
with the adequacy of the building regulations with particular regard to fire safety. In
response, Dame Judith Hackitt was asked by the Secretary of State for the
Department for Communities and Local Govemment (DCLG) and the Home
Secretary to conduct an Independent Review of Building Regulations and Fire
Safety with a particular focus on their application to high-rise residential buildings.

43. Although her final report is not due until the Spring this year, in December last year,
Dame Judith produced an Interim Report and presented to parliament. In the
foreword to her report, she states that:

“As the review has progressed, it has become clear that the whole system of
regulation, covering what is written down and the way in which it is enacted In
practice, is not fit for purpose, leaving room for those who want to take shortcuts
to do so".

44.1t does appear that there will be significant changes to the current regulatory
system and to the Building Regulations regarding fire safety and in particular to
high-rise residential buildings. Some of these changes are likely to be
retrospective. The retro-fitting of sprinklers, for example, which has been debated
for many years, particularly more so since the Lakanal House fire on 3 July 2009,
is believed to be one such area of improvement under consideration.

45.With this in mind, Members may take the view that the CoLC, llike several others

are doing, should wait until the final report is published before deciding on its future
strategic approach to fire safety in relation to the Barbican Estate.

Page 76



Conclusions

46.Members will be aware from the several Fire Safety Update Reports presented to
this, and other Committees that the CoLC has responded very positively and
efficiently to the demands placed on it by the Grenfell Tower tragedy. We have
done considerable work in the following areas:

fire risk assessments,

communication with residents,

estate management,

fire safety maintenance and improvement work,
inspections by the London Fire Brigade,
potential future improvement works.

47.This report Informs Members of the work done in relation to potential improvement
works to enhance the safety of the residential blocks on the Barbican Estate and
its residents in the event of fire. The report also seeks Members views and
guidance on the strategic direction the CoLC should take in Its approach to fire
safety with particular regards to our genuine high-rise residential blocks in relation
to:

» retro-fitting sprinklers,
¢ installation of fire alarms,
¢ upgrading front entrance doors.

48.As outlined previously, the retro-fitting of sprinklers in CoLC tower blocks is not
currently required by law and is not supported by the recently completed FRA's.
However, there are clearly reasons why Members may want to positively consider
retro-fitting sprinklers in the three high-rise residential tower blocks on the Barbican
Estate. This Includes the obvious benefits that sprinklers provide (as outlined within
this report), the potential cost implications if retro-fitting does become a legal
requirement, the avoidance of a divergence within the CoLC'’s high-rise flats and,
in light of the decision to install sprinklers in the CoLC's five social housing high-
rise tower blocks, the benefits and savings from ‘economies of scale’ in packaging
the works.

49.Members will recognise the potential comparisons that may be drawn from the ‘in
principle’ decision taken by the Community and Children’s Services Committee at
Its meeting on 11 May 2018 to install sprinklers in its five social housing high-rise
tower blocks. The Director of Community and Children's Services is therefore
recommending that Members positively consider the retro-fitting of Automatic
Water Suppression Systems (sprinklers) in the three high-rise residential tower
blocks on the Barbican Estate. Clearly, any decision by the Committee will be
subject to the appropriate funding arrangements and compliance with the relevant
planning requirements.

Page 77



Appendices

Appendix 1: Feasibility study into the retro-fitting of sprinklers in our high-rise
residential blocks.

Appendix 2: CoLC's Fire Safety Adviser's Report

Paul Murtagh, Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services
T: 020 7332 3015

E: gaul.murtagh@cig@ﬂondon.gov.uk

Page 78



S2I0DSSV aNNDA s waUNa YYAH

mxoo_m 19M0 1 nl..,w_m_o:.0>< S)90|g JOMO] ¢ — uediqieqg

s)yo0|g Jamo] Jybi] je sweyshg Jepjuudg
Wonay oyul Apms Ayjiqiseey

sawayog Japjuuds Jyonoy
uopuo- jo A9

Page 79



e3pyoossy onnoA s sang YWAYH

j)o0|g Jomo | -9je)s3 aueT] udspjon yoo|g 19mo] | — dje}s3 xas3IPPIN

sawayasg Jepjuuds Jyonay
uopuo- jo A1D

Page 80



S3LVII0SSY ONnaA g EIUna ALE

€C sBummeaq ysjeys
A4 j99ys peaids )so09
Ll SUOIJRIBPISUOY) [RIDUSL) SSWBYDS |V
1 45 }O0[q JOMO) 9)e)ST aueT uap|os
1 3901q 1omoj) aje)s XasIppiN
8 $)20|q J9MO]) 9)e)ST IePUOAY
1 4 S)00|q JOMO0] 3je)sg uediqieqg
€ swaysAg pasodoid/suondo
(4 182140 a4 109

Alewiung aAnnosaxg

Q

o

[\
o

X3AaNI

saleyog Japjulids 140430y
uopuoT jo Ao

Page 81



s3lvionssy annoa s gauing AR
ze o | obed

-waysAs Japjuuds meu auj Jo uopelfesu] eyl Bumogoy pooB Bupjew uey Jewpo uogejuewBdwicd ally AUB Joj SPNOUL JOU Op SIS00 8y )
‘WwajsAs uue(s aysajows & jo Led Aue o jje Joj apnjoul JoU Op §)sod 8|

-SOJSASE JO SBAIE UILJIM SHIOM PSj|04UO0D AUB JO SOJSI]SE JO [eAoLa) 'sABAINS (TP SCISaGsE pasnbal 64y Joj apnioul JoU Op 1500 Al

‘Burzeal JO }su o esiwjulw o) ‘Aiessaceu aleym Somedid sy Jo UOREINSU] [EULIALY SLi JaA09 os|e Jodas iU upjim sJs0D
-ajqissod se yonwi se spomadid pue spesy Japjuuds e Wioq Bujieeound 1o} epnjoul Hodel SILE UM S1S0D

-gouepInb noym Apuapuadepul suonejaidiajuiubisap JjoL) USHEHSPUN O} JOLEQUCD paacidde
ue Buwwoje Jo ysu saud sanpai o} Jusju ubisep Juswns sepiraid 3 “e') abiels Jxau ey o) sjesodoud asaly exey o} UogeuLIGj) ajenbape sepnjou) Hodaa siy 1

1900 B4 10D U
woy Jndu) Yeme om Bnss) Jo elun Uy "SJeme} SJEjs UBoKjieq ed) Jog Jodal s jo uopesedaid e ul {g41) epebug aJ14 UopUOT YIIM Pa)NSUGD BABY 9M

-uop=yUSLIEdLUCD B OJU} PaX0O] JOU SEY } ‘SWejsAs
uoposelop aly/eNows pue sajnal adease auy ‘suopisod peey J1epjuuds 'uopnquisip yiomadid ‘seyddns Jeiem :sjoadse Bummoy|o} 8y} pamalral sey Apris eyl

-uogepoWILLO3oE Uosiad N asudLioed [[e $3201q 341

*alyy @ J0 Seouanbesuad U JO XsU aonpal 0] S 8AR2RIG0 110D

*9]® SUOROLSAJ puk suojejur] e

(eIl o pue Addnsebieiols Jejem) swejqaid (RIS o

‘51500 |egualod

‘uope|[ejSul LpIm POJeIOSSE SSR]  ©

(10 SULIEje S8 yons saunsesw Ajajes aly [epuslod Jeyio o) peseduioo) wejsAs B yons Bujieisul jo sjysusg ¢
(¢euop aq )1 ued) wasAs e yons Bulljejsul jo seqiedpRld  ©

“¥00§q yoee Joj BUPMOII0} BUL 1588} 12 UIEU0D O} 51 Hodau eLf) ‘$00iq 8su ybiy g 8,700 ey ol (ssopjupds) swejsis
uorsselddns Jejem jo Bumy-aned [eguajod ey ojul Apis Ajqises; e auedeid o) (VAG) S81E1008SY BUNOA B JoNg PSUOISS|LILLD BABY (700) uopuo jo MO

Alewumg aAjIndexy

saweyos Jopjunds 30130y
uopuo jo A1)

Page 82



S3vDDSSY aNncA 23N AR

e Jo Z sbed

ipayoed
Aiapeq ae sjyby Aouabisews Jayloym pue Aiddns [enp e sey Jl| suewaily Jayaym Ajuep noA pinoo esesld Jojelsuab Aqpuels B sas JoUDID B @
LALNoas UBW J4pZ 0} pajoeuUc Jey Yoes Woy pedinbal aq UORED|pu]| uLeje a1y ajeledes [|Im “HOO|g SIY) O} SUUBE SIy OUSIB 8JBY] e

9sNoH Iy 18aI5 — Sjejsg aue UepjoD

"Aemuiels deosd Jo sueaw auo AUO SBYJOBNS XISIIPPIN  *
épavoed
Aseyeq aue s)ybif Aousbisws Joyeym pue Aiddns enp e sey | suewall Jagaym Auepo noA pinoo aseayd ‘Jojrisuab AQPUE)S B 99S JOLUDID OAR @
LAinoas uews 2/ 0} PaISULIOD 1By LYoes Woy palinbas 5q uogesipu) uuele aiy sjeIedas (IM “400|q SIY) O} SULEje alyousuBaIBY] e
Jomo] JecORIad SIEIST *SS5(phi

ipavped
Asapeq ame sjybi Asushiews saysym pue Addns fenp e sey Wi suewall4 Jalpaym Ajuep noA pjnoo aseald Jojesaush Aqpuels B 995 JOUPIP SAL, o
LAUNDes UBL 2 /7 0} PSjOSUUOD Jey yoea Wwoy palnbal eq uopesipu; uuee euy sjesedes [\ 00| SiLR ©) SULBR 2l oUBIB AIBY] ®
SHO0[q ISMO € - S[epUOAY

paoajold aq 0} 21940} 1Yl 4o} PAMOI|E SABY SAN "SEIGqO] 1| OUl WOy SaINo adedss sy Jo AuB 0} pasnbal uogosioud | e
ZULLUOD NOA pinod ases|d -Buiyousip

3.Inba1 JOU [IiM SMOPULIM S} JBL} POLUNSSE BABY am Pajosjald aq [Iim LI00I 4OBD Sy :SMopuw Jusupiede Joypo ssed yoiym senol odeosse [ewle)xg e
"Yoea 0} uue|e Japjuuds ay) aunbal Jou Aew al10jalsy) 0S Yoea O] ULIe|e aJy B S| aioy|

diuewpede yoee uj pauinibes oq wiefe ue pinom Jo-dwind Japjuuds ey o} Juedefpe ‘'] ‘peuinbau sj uLiee jeuonesado auo Jsnf i UYUCD BSEld  °

’ Lsadid Buikuew jue) Jasu Jopn 8yl woy usye) aq sdwnd Japjuuds mou auy o} Aiddns sy uen

"uuyuod eseeld ‘y|0Z -1526 S8 WM Aldwod 0} $300{q [je 10} SWISAS Jopupds
H00[q i1V

-:payse sSuogsend
"Hodau S|y} uo eduwl [ el saydas pue JaoyYI0 Suld 0D SU) WOY SJUSWSS UIELED JO LONBUUCD 10} PSYSE JABY SMN

100440 844 109

saleyodg Japjulds Jyosjoy
uopuo jo A9

Page 83



sapronesy onnoA B gaung WWAR

Zs Jo ¢ ebied

. “LIS)SAS Jojem oqsoWop
9y} JO UOREsIUO|oD [BRuaod LW ImaIb BUAIORq ejjouoiBbe] JO ysu o) eseasnul A{jedfBLURIP [IM YOIUM sBej peep aAlssaoXe sajeal }| SB poijsl pausjeud
e Jou s} siy uoiwdo INo uj INq wiAlsAs palsOOq SRSBLLOP Sy} WOl USHE} 84 O} SLOROBUUOD Joj Mojje suofenbal Jepjupds [equUapisal U JeL) BIBME 32 O

1509 8u) L] aSSA) JO} SOUBMO]E

ue epeuw aAzy am pue ssesoud ubisep ey} Buunp pauLyUoD eq I SiYL -segddns Yourlq ey uo sanjea Bupnpal sunsseud auyu) spivasd o) Alessaoeu

aq Aew Y speey 1saybjy ey} saes 0} einssad sjenbape s1 eJdL JBL) aunsue o} pue dwind 18)S00] B} WOY S|BAS] JBMO] B 18 poplaoid aunssaud sug ) ang
-S10M0} 8JE)ST] UEDIGIEd S UJUlM WajsAS Jopjuuds

MBU B} JO BOINOS JSjEM SUf) J0] SHHUEB) JOSU oM Sij} ash 0} ejqissod aq AeW J| JSOO 3l 70D LM UCHBULILLOD O} peolqns ‘Apagewslly "¢L0Z-1SZ6 S WM
eourijdwiod uy saunssaid pue moly pasjnbel au JInS O} pezZis yun dwnd ejbuis 8 yym peanbay aq M WNWNEW SeL)j 000G PUNCIe 1o abeio)s Jojem aleiedas
alojauou pue spesy Jepjuuds 1saybiy ouj o} sjuewaynbey aunssaud/moy o) Wjoq apiaoud o) soddns ulew Js1em Sy} UILim ainsse.d ejenbapeul S| asey ]
"pepnou} Ueaq Jou SABY Jnq Sjqessep Jualp & egABw suue|e jey Sjeledss

‘pejjes oq 0} g4 9igeus o} uogesado JepjuLds JO JUeAS Bi Ul ULIeje ue epiaid 0} uexepepun Ajisee aq ued siul g waysAs aseo Aousebiowe Hyz Aue
0} pajOBUUD 8q O} LLEe 3y} 10j PEMOj|e Jou SABL I -dwnd urew sy 1o} Auo ‘uoneiedo Japjuuds Jo Ajjou 0} pauuefe aq o} Jej yoes aJinbay Jou sa0p §€ 9YL

"$3j001q eseLy Jo} ejgenns aq oj jou pjnom wasAs jo adA} sjyi JeLy JOp|SUCD dlojaiel]
9A\ "SEaJe |BUNLILIOCD Sl 0Jul PUSJXe JOU PINOM pue anss| sduBuAjLIEW ybiy e g pm yoym Guyjemp yoes Ul jes dwnd e aunbau |Im WSISAS 1S JBJEM

-adesse JO SUBDW Jo} Sjuspisad
ey} 0] )su e asoduw) Jey) Sedse [EUMUILLICD 3L} 0} 8pNU) OS{E ([ UDIUM ‘v10Z -1526 SO M Adwoo | waisks Japjuuds DJeWOINE ONSSLUOD paxy

wejsAs jsju Jajem e 1o we)sis Japjupds Jpewioine paxy e o'l suondo Z e aJeyl
swe)sAg pasodoid/suondo

saweyos JepjuLids 3yoney
uopuo- jo Aj1D

Page 84



ALvII0ssvanNnoA sERing WAY

Ze o ¥ abed

sashoyjued - L 8 OF Sloold

yoee uo sjey Z — 6¢€ ¢ 8¢ £J00|

yoea uo sjey ¢ — /¢ 0} | siooj4

“JBiay sjgnop uopdaoay

ncybnony sojseqse s auay |

‘fousBiawa ue Bupnp g7 Aq asn Joy )| suewalld suo Yim papinoid usaq sey doolq sy

. "SAleA 13Ul spebuq asy pue (seiqqoj Y| aLp wl Aurew)

[9A8] YOS Je aAleA Jopno Josy Jam ‘sduind [saip @ owoaje ‘sHUB) a6RI0)S Jojem umo sy Buney WolsAs Josy 1aM B LM peplacud uaaq sey yoo|q syl
Y| suewsed|y pue Gugybi Asuebiews Joj JoyesausB Aqpuels

"$810]S JUSpPiSAI puUE BaJe sfesodsip UoRS|(00 Alsem AByIIRS) ‘eale Jue(d Jajem oysalo( ‘eae Jueld Jasy J9pA — Jusweseq
seale jueld Juswaseq g UUm (S1ey 2 || ) suooy [enuapisas |

0461 uonongsuoc)

Jamo] ajepJapne]
‘pojiesul swe)ss Bunybyeuy ||e Lpim Jejjwe)
SJe pue eys aiy o) sYisia Jejnbas axew Asiy puejsiopun Inq apebuq auy sy Joj uonRULIOJU AJBSSI95U ay) apiroud a) sexoq eplec) Aue a0[0U Jou pIp A

"JsU sy} Jamo] 0} [euuny siy} Buissasoe AGQo]. eLp 0} SWBJSAS $320|q [BUSPISAI B4} JO Lyoea
Luoy pamojie aq jiim s1spjuuds ‘pealds o) auy oY) 10} BNUSAE diqissod e st siy) SY “S)iS Bl INoYBNOIYE SIPEULOIBIUI JEL [PLILINY SSIIAISS [EUNLWLLOD B Sf 219y |

"seale Aqqo| }i| [euNILIOD SL Wy S10J0E}ap ou BJe asy ] “uopdeoal je jeued wuee pue 1B} LYOBS Ul JOJOS}P B UM WaSAS ULIee 2y e S| aloy |

"Apnis sy §o ped uuoj Jou Op pue ‘wWalSAS SjEWd)E ue 0} Jom B Wodj payipow Buiaq
Apuauno ale swe)sAs asoy)] we)sAs Jopjuuds [euonesado Agny umo Jiewy eaey Apealje sxped Jed ay) ‘JnoyBnauy) Bunped Jeo JUSLLSSE( [BUNWILWIOD S| 248y ]

£400]q JBMO} € JO SISISUCO S SIY |
uesiqieq

$0)15/8)20]q 8} Jo Lyoes Jo} sjesodoid ino ase Bumojjo} sy

saweYyog Japjuudg jyonay
uopuo- jo A9

Page 85



galvionssy onNnoAsuaung WAL
ze jo g obed

sasnoyuad — 6€ ¥ 8 8100(4
yoee uo sjey Z — L€ 2 9¢ si00|d

yoea uo siBy € — € 0} | 8I00|4

wbiay eiqnop uondecsy

mnoyBnay s0jseqse sj asay |

fouoBiewe ue Buunp g4 Aq esn Joj Y SuBwAIL] U0 LM pepiroid USaq SEY oolq BUL

aneA [Iyu1 apebq auy pue (seiqqol Wil eyl U Ajutew)

[OAS] YOS 1B BAJBA 19ANO Jost Jom ‘sdwind [95aip P 900f ‘sYUE} 85RIOIS Jejem umo <Y BUIABY WEISAS JBSH oM B LM pepiacud useq sey joojq eyl
Wy suewen pue Bugyby Asustiewe 104 Jojeleueb Aqpuels

s210)s SJUGPISAI PUB BaE S{ESOdsip UOROa|0D ajsem Aeyales ‘saie jueid JajeMm Jfsallo(] ‘Base weyd Josu oM — Jueusssed

seaue juend Juewweseq Z uym (s1ey | L L) S100} jeRuSpisal 6E

0461 Uogonnsuo)

Jamo] [|amuIold

sasnoyued — | ' OF 810014
yoee uo sJ8Y Z — 6€ P 8E SI00L]
yoes uo sjBy € — /€ 0} T 4004
sjey Z - | Joold
wbiey siqnop uogdaoay
ynoybnouy sojseqse Sl esdt ]
fousBiews us Buunp g7 Aq esn Joj | SUBLIAIL] SUO YM PoplACId ueaq SEy YD0Iq UL
aAjeA (iU epeBuq aiy pue (s91qqo) il e uj Ajurew)
[OAS] 4ORO JE BAJEA JON0 JOsU jam ‘sdwind |esaip g ouoele ‘syul) abeials Jajem umo sy Guiaey waysAs Josu 1em B Uim pepiacid useq sely Xooid Ul
W suswauy pue Bugyby AoueBiawe Jaj Joieseueb Aqpuels
S@I0]S SJUEPISal pue ease s[esodsip UOROS||oD ASEM Asyaues) ‘eale Jueld Jajem ogsswoq ‘eaue ueid J9sy JpN — Juewaseq
sease juejd Jueweseq Z Lym (SIEY 91 L) S100j) [eguapisal Ly
300iq Siy} 0} Aemqns SIAISS ON
0.6} uogongsucy e
Jomo] aseadsayeys

sawaYyog Jopjuuds Jjonsy
uopuo jo )10

Page 86



S3iViD0ssY aNnoA B uTILnE \TAL

Ze Jo 9 sbed

"SHJOM papUB)Ul B} JO Bale 8L} Ul i SjeAoLa: pue sABAINs sojseqsy
"PajIEISL ©q 0} 8Je $HI0M Bl MOY UO SJuSWIBle]S POLIBW AQ PAIBA0D 8q PINOM YOILM SHIOM UOJON)SUOD Buipiing [eULOU UBYE JSLIO YSU LUNLLIULRN
UCRE|[E}SUl LpIM PIBIDOSSE SHSIY

UORONYSUOS 8 BIA peauds a.y [eusajul Bunusasid Joy Juswannbal sy eanpes Aepy
ajnou Juauno el Bugosioud Ul Jsisse pinom siapjuLds pue sease Aqqo| Y1 8Y) WOl apnod Aemuie)s adensa ejeuis)|e ou s aual ]
pajoajoidun ale Ajuauno yoym Aemulels adeoss Jo suesw ayy o} pepioid ag Ued siapuuds
Jueas(eil s uosuedwod S|y alojalay] WSISAS ULIEIE 81| SABL] SISMO ]
BALLE g47 [BUN pauleluod S| 8l 8y
(o1e suueje se yons sainseaw Ajajes auy jenuajod Joylo o) pasedwos) welsAs e yons Buyielsul Jo syeusg o

saylian sfesodold sk saA sl Jamsue oL |

(¢ouop aq )1 ued) we)sAs & yons Bume)sul 4o soyeoRORl]  *
suonsanp

. "0} ‘suuefe papy jueua) ([eoo] ‘sbi)
Buieo o} suogeoyipow Alessaoau jle pue Aemjiey ag Jo yibus) sy} InoyBnouwy buyieo pieoquaiseld paddoip Agybijs ® annbai pinom siyl -Aemjey au Buoje
speay juepued passadal pue Wood KiaAS / YoEe OJU| S1epjupds |[em epis passaoel Yum Aemjey Buyjamp e Guoje uiBw Japjuuds MeU e UnJ 0} 8q P[NoM juetul

"sBuigso ajausucdpasdiseld feulbuo aL SBY YIJyM Jamo) emWosD Ul ZG | 18l Buiaq Jayo aw pue Jnoybnoa
Pappe usaq asey sbuigso pueoq se)serd 'Japjoyasea) ey Aq Jno papyal Buiaq o} 800 S| YDIYM Joma) ajeadsereys u| aUO “Sjel oM} SSIDOR O} J|ge oM I

S[BULIN] S2IALSS [BUNLIWOD O} S3aUBqUa
Aqqo| s Jeyabo) pajos)oid aq [m Bale S210)S [ERUAPISAI “pajosjold aq [jm pomadid Jo juewdinbs queid uogoajoud auy uRLCD JBLY) SEale JuaWaSE] |1y

"JOSU YoBd Jo poyiew siues ey Aq papoajosd eq osje ueo esie adease Jo sueew ay|
"sliem Aqqoj 3 St 0} Gumy pue yBnany Bulliup ainbas [w YIIYM JesU yoea Wy sispjuds [lem opis Aq pejoojosd 8q ueo seale [eUNWLIOD AGGOl Wil BUL

"seale Aqqoj 11 [Bunwwos sy Buissoin
Inoym sjey yoeo ojul Aqus/ssasoe apiaoid [m pue soop Aiaae uo passsooe Apuspuadapul sie yorym sasu Buiquingd yoes ul auo ‘siesu saly) asodasd apn

}oo0|q uedjqieg yoeo Joj sjesodoud jeojdL )

saweyoag sepjuudsg jJyosey
uopuo jo )9

Page 87



S3IvIa0asy ONNoA F 8aing YAH

Z& o L abeq

. 00°b6S°1853 JOMO ] [[eMI0ID)
00'¥9.'8093 lemo) aseedsayeys
00818193 J9MO] e[epJepne

£864 pPUB | YA 'SHHOM S0)saqsy Aue Jo 8Asnioxg
UBdIqIEg - 1500 pojelinsa

leacudde Buipjing pejsi
"0Jo SuoyLSal pue suolejw e

BuoLU ale alay |
(o o pue Addns/abeicls Jojem) swajgoud rRIMONUS  ©

payoeye sy
§)S00 [ERUAlO]  ©
saweyos Jopjuudsg Jyos)ay
uopuo- jo A9

Page 88



LYioossy oNncA s Hang WAH

Ze Jo g abey

"S]El) WoOIpaq euo pUE o|pn}s Jo sjsisucd Ajuey
"Yoes uo sjey v — g} 0} |. 100}
"sjey g - Jooy punais)
BaJe Aqqo] Yl YOBD WOy SABMIIB]S OM) BUB SJLY|
: Jnoybnouly sojsaqse $1 a1ay) paaaijeq si )
"sanjeA Buipue) sasu Aup ay) se [aas] swes ay) uo Jxa Lpw fouabiswe ue Buunp g4 Aq @sn o} }jI| suBLWAI U0 LM popircld USaq SBL 3OO Yoeg
"S100y Sjewa)fe je seAjeA Bujpue) Japno ypm wesAs Jesu AIp B Lm popiatud
"pauinbal uopocejoid oN "pejeso] Ajlewsexe pue ejeledas aJe §AI0JS SUSPISY
"BasE Sesodsip Uogoa]|0d alsem PUB SyEIU [BLN0BIT "Bale juBld Jsjem JRsaLIo(] “jejul Jesu Aig — JOOY pUnoIS)
"Seaue Juewaseq ou (sjey y2) s1ooy jequapisal 6
'S096| UORONASUOY  »
Jamo) yoesgy

"apis uado LM sie)s adeose Jo SUBSLL [BLUSIXS PAsOA0D Ajued puR JIE)S SS8098 (BLISJU| UE S| a1 |

“Sjey Sy} JO ISP U} LILIM SJe SISSU SoISS ‘ABMIlE]S
3y} u) Josu Aup ay Bujeq soLpo sy Aqqo] i 2y Ul [Booaje Buleq euo ‘suIE)s SSE30E [BWe)U] PUB AGQO] )| BLY WO PISSE00E SISSL JENUSD OM} S8 BJALLL

‘adA) yoed Aiapeq ay) jo ale syyby AousBiows pue
Addns [eagose [enp B aABRY [IM Iy L Jey) swnsse pue Aoudbisws Buunp SIY6) pue ¥y ay} yioq jo asn Joj Jojelausb AGpuEls e S)e0o| ) S|qEUN oM S

"apebuq auy ay) Aq asn 10} S| )] Y} JO SUO PUE SICO} BJELUGHE OIS YOIYM SYI| OM) SUE aJoY |
"Yil suewall] aip o} Jusselpe Joop Joujo Aiaas Je Je)Ino LB LM Jasu AIp e sey y20iq yoesg
‘pajusunedwod aly Jo pajejpuaA aq o} Jou Jeadde yoiym 1y yoes ungm spieoqdno UM SJe SIOSU/SISIOW SBS)

"AousBiewe us Buunp g4 Jo sueidnooo Jeyjo o} Bulwem epiaocid
10U S0 S{u INQ ULB(E/SIOINE}AP JBO0] UMO JiBL] Palll SARY Jepjoleses) Jo Jueue) yoes Ji st Ajijioe Auo ey} ‘$400jq 9so) 0} WelsAS Wiefe aly ou S| 18y |

mnoybnouly (eoidA) ale yoJYM JO [|B 'JSET PUB jeNUSD ‘JSBAR ‘SHOOIG JOMO) € JO SISISUCD BlIS S|
8)e)5 9]epuoAy

sawayog Japjuuds Jjonsy
uopuo- jo Aj19

Page 89



Ze 40 6 ofbied

pejoajoudun aJe Apuaund yojym skemiels adeosa Jo sueaw ay} o} papiacid 8q ued slapjuuds
JUSLILIOD JaoLQ) Sl peeu pinom — WelsAs uLeje auy e 2AeL 0} psal s} jusaaid Aepy
auy 8y} Jo UoREDO| oY} UcKEDIpUl Aq 847 SIPIACI]
SALLE g7 |3un p3UIBUOD Sl all a8y ]
(e suueje se yons sainssow KAjejes aly jegualod Jeyio 0} pasedwioo) wajsAs B yons Buyeisul jo syeusg

Auoan sjesodoud se sak s1lamsue sy|
(;euop oq )t ued) wejsAs e.yons Buljjesu) Jo SERIEORORI - ©
suofsand

. ‘0)9 "SUNE|e pajy Jueus] [eJ0)
sjyBy Bupieo o} suogEaypow Alessecsu [j@ pue Aemijey ay) Jo Bus| eu inoyBnoup Suiieo preoquerserd paddaup Apubiis aunbay pinom siy ‘Aemjjey ey Buoje
speey juepuad pessesel pue Wool Alaaeajoe oju) sJapjuuds |[BM epis passeodl LM Aemjiey Bujiamp aip umop uew Jepjupds mau e url 0} 8q pinom Jusjuj
-paleloodp ueeq jsni pey YoIUM JO0E 1S3M U] SUO JB|} 8Uo SSEI0E O} S|qE aJaM B

-sEale 0URKUS X0q A Buore peroajaid eq | suomadid Jo Juewdinbo “ueid uogasiald aul UKD [IIM JBL) SBalE yueyd v

-poyew Jejus & Aq ‘Alesseoau § ‘pejosjold eq osje Ued ease edeose jo sueall
syl ‘sjey ey 0y Bugnos ulew yoea woy (UORNIOS [euy 0} Joeiqns) ‘spesy siapjuuds Juepusd Jo [|lemapis Aq pejoejosd ©g UBD SEAIE [BUNLWILCD AQQoj Il YL

"|esouco pue a30ud

.0} Buproq pue Buzeay weAesd o} uogeinsul W Beue AqGo] Ji Yoee ul eas ybiy je Buiuuni 1By YRS 0} JBSU BL) WOY LDUEI] PIN0D Liew Japjuuds meu 2yl
panosyD 3q o) pasau

pinom } Inq wesuod Buuuerd e eq pjnom Sil 8483 JOU Op SR JUSLIEEIUOD puE uopsajoud ‘Suzeay) Jusasud 0} pexoq pue pajensul Ajjeuusyj eq o} uiBLl
mau oy auinbal pNom Yoiym JjElS adeose Jo SUBSW Palaad Aued ‘|eLLSp® Jea) By Ul JasUl elp Syedo) 0f 9 pjNOM UORN|OS )S3q OLf sAsljaq alojasal SM

-/E3sur o} eAisnqU) AjewRxe eq pinom } Ing Jesy sef euy apisbuoie aq PINom eswop 18 8L UILIM PaIepisLIod aq
O} SEM SIU} J| UOREDO] 1S9 el 1Bl BY) JO YOES JO 8siWop el ungim Buyiup pue Buissease ueaLL PINOM JONP Jasi BAIAISS BL Q)L syomadid Jopjuuds Joj SS00Y

"paIoLISaI S) JONP S| Cjul SS800E SE JesU AIp B Se Jesw SLWES 8ij) ajul JIsy Jopjuuds Meu aij [[eIsul 0} JNOWP 8q PINom Y

%00]q 9jepuoAy yoea Jo} sjesodoad [esdAL

saweyoss sopjunuds jojey
uopuo- jo A1D

Page 90



SALVIDOSSY aNNoA B ETUNG YWAE

ZE 40 oL efey
00°960°LEF3 Jamo] jseq
00°960'LEV3 demo | jenquad
00'960' LSV iamo] ISopR

8884 PUB | YA SWeISAS ULIBIR BJY/SXOLUS ‘SHIOM S0}SaqSsy AUE JO aAISnjoXT

S[EPUOAY - 503 pajeuiyss

Buueld Ajqissod
"O}8 suoljoLlsal puB sUofelW] e

auol aJe auay |
(e 3y} pue Alddns/abeicys Jojem) me_n.o& [eamongg e

paLjoeye sy
S]S00 |ERUSJOY o

“S3IOM PApUBIUL B} JO BaJE SY) Ul JI S[BAOWSI PUE SABAINS SOISSGSY
'PaIIEISUL Bq 0} BB SHIOM BLj} MOY UD SJUSWIRIE]S PoLow AQ PRISA0D 8 PINOM UDILUM SHIOM UOGONESUCD Buipjing |Bwuou uey) Joy1o ySU LNy
UOREjeISUl LM DIRIDOSSE SHSR]

UoRONISUCD ay) elA peauds aiy [ewsiul Buguaasid Joj Juawannbai ay) sonpas Aepy

sewayog Jepjuuds Jyonay
uopuoT jo A9

Page 91



sauymossy annoag dang WAH
Z& 0 11 8bed
Base Sjesods|p UCGO3]|00 GjSEm PUE BxeuI [BOLIOa[T ‘Baue Jueld Jejem JfsaLog ‘|l Jesul Aig - looy punaig)
SJOOY SjBLIAJjE SSBIJB SYIT  *
Jamo] ey woy pejesedas Bupped feunwiliod juewsseq g puncly e
punolb [BunLILLICY UM SEaIB asnjal g ed ‘syun abei0]s jBY — JOOY punolsy e
sjun sbeio)s sjey — | |9AST]  ©
(s1e1d Z8) ‘12l ¥ Sey yoes £Z [8as) o) (wnipod) Z [eAe]  *
siooj ¥Z
SQ.61 uonongsuc)
Jamo] jeodyjed

“SUIBq LM UOZONUISLICS S}0.0UsD JO BB SYIEM UIBLU SL UM 300Iq SjoyMm 8l |

-samys 5dE059/$S8008 BU} UM %00Iq S[0yM au UBNOIL Ajjedgian Sun anyo asnjal syl

-adesse jo sueol AIepuooas OU §| aldy) ‘epis uedo uB sey Yojym suels edessa JO SUBSLL 3] 0S]E S| J|&)S SS8a0e [ewssqul ay i
«(z 19nol) [9A3] Wnipod J2 Syxe Ydum alod AGqoj Ui BUl 4O SIHElS 8dedse suo Auo si asayl

-SSJUIOP 18|} U UILIM BB SI08L OO € TEY} BWINSSE O "AQQO] JELS il O LM JasU [B0RISIS UE S) 8iSUL

) -adA) yord Aiepeq ay) jo oq I syl AoueBiews pue
Addns [eouioeje |BNP B aABY [IM Y] 94f JEL) SLUNSSE oM *kaueBuawe Huunp syybi| pue Ji sJj} 8wy Yoq Jo asn o) JojesauaB AQpueEss & 8jedo)| O} Bjqeun alem B\

- BugySy-aul B S pejieqe| S| 8UO *SI00Y SIEWSHE BAIIS UOJUM S|l M} 318 ausU |
Bl SUBWAII] L} LM SPIOUIOD Jeu JOOoY JSLHO AleAs Je Sefino Lym Jesu Aip pesodxa ue sey 3ooiq syl
“podal S| UILRIM paIepisucd ueeq jou sey pue wejsAs Jopjuuds pajeoipap e Aq pejoajoud si Yoym Bupyied Jes punoibispun [EUNWOD S! 8IS

‘sJeidn900 JaLo 0} Buiem
epiacid 30U SBOp SI NG ULIB[E/SI0I0918P [EI0] UMO JISL) PalY) BABY JOPIOYesEs)| 10 Jueus) yoee J s1 Aoe} AjUo 8L HOOoIq Sy O} we)sAs uLe|e aul ou sl alel]]

-18M0 120010 POWIBU %00|q JOMO} | JO SSISU0D O)iS SILL
aje)sy xas9|PPIN

soway2sg Jepjuuds Jonay
uopuo- jo K19

Page 92



S3IVIDDSSY BNNCA B Hauna WA
ZEJoZ| ebeq

"PeJan0D aq 0} Jey By Jo sease (e juued o} Buixoq ajqe)ns
Uim Jawwiod jjem aif) o) Sulies auyy w pajeoo] swoas esay ol Papus)xe aq o} peeu pinom Alddns e ueyoyy pue eBuno| ay w el eu JO SaRILANXS BY) O) eng

"0j@ ‘suuele papy jueus) jeao; ‘syyBi Buieo o} suofesypoLw
Asesseosu |je pue Aemjiey ay Jo Wbual ey inoybnoiy Gupes preoque)serd paddaup Apybis e asnbai pinom spp ‘Aemjjey ey Buoje speay juepusd
Pessesal Lhim AemBy oy} 140 WO AloAB/ee OJU SIIpjuLds ||em epis passaocal i Aem|fey Buijemp sl UMOP UlewW Japjuuds Mau B UnJ ) 8q PINoM JuaU]|

"alenauad 0)
dARY [Iw adid Jepjuuds mau 6y} JBY WEB] SJAIOUCD PUEIS UMOP B POJEBASS UDIUM ‘pajRIoosp ueaq JSnf pey LYojym jey Wooipeq euo B SSed0E 0} 8|qB 610M B4

"SEAJE 8oURIUS %00]q ypm Buole pajosioid aq [ dpomadid Jo Jusiudinbs queld uonoejoud auy uIEIUOD M JeLp seale Jueld v
'seaJe asay) o} uoposioxd spinoxd o} AGqol Yl S pue SINYD asnyel 'Aqqo] ABmulls SSBOOE Bl LM papiacid eq pinom spesy Jepluudg
"J8su sy 10} s100y 8y YBnoay pue synal ytomadid ay) Buore sjjem ajalouos (e ybnoiy pannbas aq pinom Buijug

‘Burzee.y yusas.d o} pajeinsus Aljeuuielp aq sesu pue £qqoj] ABmurels ey u) uogaes el pue paxoq aq pinom adid sjoym oy | ‘sAem|ey Buljomp
aup Ul [aaay 46w Je Jey yoea Jojue o} sBuieo/siem usemiaq S1aWICO aly) uj jeas] YBIY Je AGQoj 11 L JO SINOILICS Su) MOJJ0) USL) PINOS Liew JopULdS 8y |
"Pauinbal &q I s3j0y PojIUP *AGqO| 1l 3L Oju] PUB Aqqo] Aemulels Ss800e ay) SSaIDE [ene] YBIY 18 PaNos aq PINoo iomedid JBULAS "SISSU-MOU Sl WOl

"Sjuew) sy} Buiqinisip JNOyIM PeYIeISUl 2q PINCO S SE ‘SINLD BSNa) 0} JUSJEIPE JSWIOD BU Ul 64 PINOM Josy SOPULCS MSU B JOj LUOGeoso| 189G 8y |

JOMO] Je0ON)9  J0} sjesodoid

1By yoes woay adesse Jo suesiu AIZpuosas o

‘ Aemueis auo Ajup

"S1El} YOES UILUIM SI2WOD JsaLgung yoeas o) Aemjjey Sujjemp woy papudixe aq o} ypomadid

Buyup aunbai m Jeuy) sjey U sweaq ajarucy

(wooupaq

euo aip Bulsq DBY ‘wooupeq om ap Buiaq By siey) eaa) Yoes 18 4oea Yo om) Buney WooIPaY OM) PUB SUO YO INXILU UAAD L e S)8|4
SOJSaqSE S} AU} paraljaq si )

SoAleA Buipue| Josu Aip a1 SE [9ABE SWES S1 U }IXe LM ‘Aousbiaws ue Buunp g4 Aq asn Joj ) suewall4 suo Y papircid Usaq sey yoo|q Yoe
'8100Y eAjewa)|e J& SaAfes Buipue| 18Ino Yim waysAs Josy AIp B UM pepirald

L pPue punoif s|aA3| Uo ale Salojs Suspisoy

saweyog Jepjuds Jjoney
uopuoT jo £19

Page 93



galvioossyannoA s EIUne WAL
Z¢ jo g1 ebed

00°89.'16S3 Jamo] jeodjad
S99 PUB | YA SWB]SAS LLEBE BIL/HOWS ‘SHIOM SOISeqsy Aue jo ansnpxXg

jsod pajewunsy

~ auou ae aey|
-0)o SUOHOL]SAl PUB SUCRENWIT

peyoeyo a4 o} uoneseuad weaq puejsumod
(oxy ey pue Aiddns/obeios Jejem) suieiqoud [eIONLS o

payoene sy
S|S0 jepuolod  #

"S)JOM pepuUajUl 8y} JO BRIE AL} Ul J} S|SAOWI pue SABAINS SOJSaqsy
-DO|JBISU| 5q O} 25 SHIoM BLY MOY UO SJUBLLIAYESS poysit A PaISA0D 3 PINOM LOIym SHIOM LORONISUCI Buipjing [ELLOU UBLE JSLRO HSU WINWIUI
UORE|EISUl Ylim DOIEIDOSSE SYSTY =

UONONISUCY 3Y) BIA peauds auy [ewsiul Buguanaud Joj Juawaiinbas sy sanpas Ae
Aemuie)s adeasa Jo SUBSLL BUO 3} 0} uogos]old SBPIAGLA
adensa Jo suesw AJEPUODES OU BABY UOWM JBY YoBa 0} uonosjoud [euojippe sapiAcld
seaJe’Aqqo| il aY) woa ainos adesss ajBUWISHE UE JO Jey Yoee wol 3dedss Jo suesll Alepuooas ou ale audy ]
we)sAs uuee aiy e ey 0} pasu sy} Jueasid Aep
a1y 8y} j0 Uoje2o| 8L Logedpul Aq g4 Sapircid
SALLIE g4 [Jun paulgjuos s all sui
(210 suuee se yons saunseaw Ajejes aul [epuelod Jalpo 03 pasedwod) wajsAs e yons Bunpesur jo siyaueg ¢

Auan sjesodoud se soA s Jomsue oy

(;euop eq } ued) wejsAs e yons Gujjelsu) Jo seaNedield
suonsand

saweyos Jepjuuds jyosyay
uopuo jo A9

Page 94



S31vIO0SSY ONNDA 7 EELng YA E

Z¢ 1o ¥} obed

"SJ0O)} aAgews)je Je sanjea Guipue| Jono ym WalsAs Jasu AIp B Lm papiacid
SJOOY SjeLL)|E SSBI0. JBuy) Sii] oML

eale uonod|jod esnyal @ seale Jue|d saujo ‘syun ebelo)s je|4 — Juswaseq

19| Jesu Aup ‘wood Jajjoq [ews)xs ‘uondaesay — JOOoy punals)

(s1et4 0z1) ‘yoes sjey g aney G|, 0} | [9Ae]

sJ00Y 91

0961~ 8661 uogangsuoy

9SNOH INYNy jeals)

SWeaq Yl UO[ONISUCO SJ2I0U0D JO BJE S|{Em UIBW BU) UJIM YO0[q S{oyM By |

"asliuep jey
8L Uiy B1e siesu Joljo Jsow 'Ssaode o) paxijun aq o} paau sfoued Se SIU WYL 0} B|qeun a1am Jng Sjey aU aPISINC SIISU [ESLIBIO QIR BIOL} SABKHEG O

) -adf) yoed liayeq au jo aue spyby Asusbiswe pue
Addns |eawoe|a |enp & aARY ||} Yil B 18y ownsse am ‘AousBiewa Gupnp sjyby pue Y| esy aY WOG o asn Joj JolelauaB Aqpue)s e 9]e50] 0} BIQBUN 2IaM SAA

"9PIS UOEd U0 Siey  a1e aIey) SABMIIEIS pue pUE I ay) usamleg

Wi Bujyby-a.y 8 se pejjeqe| i 8uo ‘J00} Yoeo Lo AJIBSUSS PEJESO| AIB YDIYM ‘SI00Y SJBLUCHE BAISS Lalym s oMy ale aiay |
7Bl a1 40 uoRedo] sy o} Joajqns Aemireys Jo Aqdol il SU JOUle OJul 9sIWep S| Way snos edesse sjeedas e sey jey yoed
"uado Apsed ale yojum JO LROg "yoolq By jO pue yoea ABMIIESS B S1 alay |

"SABMIIEIS BU} JO SUO Wl 3)NYD BSNyal JedfuaA ay) Juaselpe sasy Jesy Ap oy

“HIl SUBURL 84} LM SSPIOUIOD YOum 100y JaL0 Ausas J& Jafino ue yym Jesu AIp pasodxa ue sey 300jq ay|

"s191dn200 JaLpo 0} Bujwem
©piAGLd Jou SI0P SIL ING LLIEJE/SI01081BP [B20] UMO JISL} SABY SIGPIOYBSEA JO SJUSPISal ) S| Ajqioe; Ajuo ey} “joo|q S 0} WisjsAs uuele iy ou 1 auey]

"9SNOH INLNY Je3u5) PaLIBU %o0Iq JAMOY | JO SISISUCD 8JIS SIY |
8je)s4 aueT uapjos

‘Sawayog Jepjunds Jyoney
uopuo jo. A1)

Page 95



sarvoossyoNnoa s Eune \WAH

Z£ Jo 61 ebed

-paencd eq 0} Jey ey} Jo sease || Juuad oy Buixoq ejqeyns
LM JOUICO [l BL 0} Bullied SUp Uj Pajeao] SWoa) 258Y) Ojul PApUB)XS 8q 0) pasu pinom Addns & woalpsq pus obunoj ey ul Jey L Jo SORlWAAXD BLY 0} ang

"0} ‘SULE|e PeRy JueuS) |eoo| ‘siyBy Bulleo o}
suopeoyipow Azesseeu ||e pue ABmeY 8y Jo LyBuaj oup InoyBnoay Buiieo preoqisiseld paddosp Agybiis aunbau pinom sy ‘Aemjiey oy Guoje spesy juepued
pessosed Lpm Aamjjey eLp 4o woal AIeAdDes ojul siapjuuds [[EM opis pessanel Lm Aemjjey Buljjemp ey umop ujew Japjuuds meu e UnJ 0} 8q pinom Jusjuj

-aoujsip 0} Onp Aemjjey oy} Ul SIopjULdS [IEmOpIS AG PAIAA0D B4 JOU JIIM SUIOOL OM) JO SBILIBXE
oyl "WOMLIEQ/USLDIP} BY) USBMIOq SOISeqsE BuILieguoo [|em B §) aiay | "PeyeIcsap ussq 1snf ey Lolm (101) 121 WIOOJPS] SUO B SSB30E O} J|E UM M

-seall GURAUS %00[q i Buoje pejosjaid oq i yomadid Jo uswdinbe “eid uogoejoxd aly UIEIIOD || Jey seale Juerd |Iv

-seaIE 9581 0) Logoalaud apaoid o} SeKIqO] PUB SARMIIES SU) UM papircid 8q pnom speay Jopjunds

*Jo8)1 BU} JO} SI00Y 8y} yBnouy pue aynal diomedid ey Guoje sjiem SJ8Joucd 8 yBnang pesnbas eq pjnoam Buliug

-Buzealy jueaaxd o} pejeinsul Ajjeuuely 8q Jesy PUB Aqqoj ABMIIE}S BU) UJ LIORDSS BLj) PUE Ul paxoq ] PiaM adid ajoym eyl

-sAamyjey Buijiemp ey u) [aAe) yBiY je 1By yoes Jejud 0} sBuIleo/S|Iem USSMB] SISLLICO S Ul [BAS] yby Je Aqqoj ey} JO SINOJUCD BL MOJI0) UBL) PINCO UleLl
JopuLds oy} ‘peiinba eq [ Sejoy PaliUp ‘AGao| J00j Yoea JO JUSIXE I} 8} SSOI. 1eAs] YBiL 18 painal 8q pinad yHomadid Jopjunds ‘s1osi mau dyj wol
-gueUS) Ly BuIGIMSIP NOLYIM PajIEISU 8q PINCD SjLf SB “Jesu AIp eynyd 8snjal 0] JULoB(pE JOLLID 8L U) 8q PInaM Jesy Jepjuuds mau e Joj Uoiedo)] 15oq 8yl

esnoH JNYMY jeals Joj sjesodoxd jeoidAL

adeose Jo sueawl AIEPUODDS BABY SB|qqo| Wi pue sield ¢

jeaa] yoes je g Buney woalpeq SUo eI SiB|J

SOJSeqEe $1 JBY Yoee U UBHOID| PUE LICOILJE] USSMIE] [[em 'sjseqse S| alyl o

sanjeA Buipue) Jesu Ap ay] SE [9A9] BLUBS 8L} UO JIXO LM ‘“fousfilews ue Bupnp g4 Aq Bsnh 10j | SUBLLIEJ|] BUO UYm PBplAld  ®

sawayog Japjulads Jyonsy
uopuo- jo A

Page 96



salvinossv annoAgeaung YWAHE |

Z¢ jo 9} abied

00'088'9/93 8SNOH JNYUY Jeals)
$094 PuUB | YA SWe)sAs ULBB QUL/HOLUS ‘SIHIOM SO)SeqsY AUE JO SAISh|OXT

1500 pajewunsy

auou ale aJay |
"0}0 SUOKOLSE) pUB SUCHEJWI]  *

suou sle ajayf
. (@ oy pue Addns/ebricls Jajem) swojqosd jeinjonng

payoeye sy
81500 [BfUAlDd

"S)JOM papusiul 3L JO BSIB BUY) Ul JI SeAOLLIST pue SABAINS SOISagsY -
‘PRIEISUI 3 0] Sle SHIOM 8L MOY U0 SJUSWIBIE)S PoLIBLL AQ PIISAGD 84 PINOM USIUM SHIOM UORINIISU0D BUIp|INg [BLLIOU UBL) JSLRO0 YSU LNLIUKA
uogeje)sit Liim poleOosSe S)shy e

uononusuod au el peasds auy jewsiul Guguaassid Jo Juswsaainbal sy aonpas Aefy
sAemiels adeoss Jo sueaw sy o) UoRIDI0Id SOPIACI]
18l yoes 0} uonosioid [BUOIPPE SBPIAGIH
we)sAs wuele aly e aaey o} pasu sy} Jusasid Aep
a1t sy} Jo ucneoo] sy uoyediput Aq 947 sepiAcld
. SALLE 947 [Un paulejuos st ady sy |
(%10 suuee se yons saunsesw Ajajes aiy [epuajod Jaio 0} peseduwoo) wass B yons Gujeisul jo sjueuag

Ajuon sjesodoud se sak s Jamsue ay |
(£euop aq )i ued) weysAs e yons Buleisul jo sopjeooRld  ®
suonsenp

sawayog Jopjulidsg Jyosjey
uopuoT jo Ao

Page 97



garyiaossy oNnoa suIing \FAH

ze o 1) obed

SNOLLVIIAISNOD TVHINIO STANIHOS TV

sowayos Jopjuuds 30130y
uopuo jo f19

Page 98



City of London
Retrofit Sprinkler Schemes

Typlical Sprinkler heads within the flats

Page 99

Page 18 of 32

3]
30}
=
@]
(4 ]
i
&
=,
)
Z
- |
‘]
-
e
=
<
| ol
==
1]




g3iviTossy aNnoA g gaung AR
Ze o 61 obed

-podal Sy Wl payguap! 10O By} O [ELORIPPE 34 [{IM UOIyM ‘PeAowal 8q o} paaul [jim suspjuuds
MU B Jo Seale Ay Ul pajeDo] sojsaqse AUe pue paunbas oq [ sASAINS (PFY QI0JISL) SOJSOYSE LIEJUICD Op SIama) 18t 1100 Aq pjo} useq BABY A7

-oqnd ey Jo AJeJEs 8INSUS G} JORUOL PUE [0UDD O} SABY jiIM Jojlejsu) e jeu sease Aqqo] eij Ul uopdnusip aq |Im 81y L
“yomedd jo Bupa pue Buijup woy 8siou 3 OS{E [IIM 8ISy

‘a]elound Se paownsse
LMOLDIUN AGLSLING S| S100} USBM]Sq [BUSIEW [|yUl S "800y UBNOJLY BINCS [ SIL SE Pajfejsul Bujeq are SI1esi 8L 15)Im SHOM AS|oU BLL0S 6q [l S6UL

uopdnusiq

*1:000'000'91 “Xoidde s| 9BJBYOSIP [EWUSPIOE JO YsU BU Al[edRSRElS

-pulyeq pesy JopiuLids au Buieesa 5 Baog puncue 1e dop [ aje|d el oLBUSOS aly € U]
-eyuid Jey WIQR SliyM B AQ PAUBACO PUE USPPIY ©q [l Speay Japjulds eyl

{(sBumelp eog) "sjuewede ey ayu Bulpuelxa PUE SSIGQO] FEUNLILICO BL 0} [9AS] J0OY UOBS J& panqIsIp aq [Im pomadid Jepjuuds
'Sai0)s pue Sjey ‘sieas] Jamo ) Jle Guiaies 1amo] yoee Uj Jesl mau e Bugpaay pun dwnd Jepjuuds e aq jm S8yl

‘feacidde 1oy aul4 0} 150[qns — (SHuey Jesl 19m
sl way uexe; oq [ Ajnjadoy SIemo} UBDIQUEH) SEAJE LUoAl JuBd BY) Ul Pajedo) JUE) yealq Jopjupds e 0} pasinbau eq [ SUIBW JAIEM 3Lj WY UORISUUCDH

seweyos |V — 0Wayos sepjupds Joney

sowayog Jepjuuds jjonay
uopuo jo A0

Page 100



S31VIDossv annoA g waLng UFAY |

zZe 10 0Z sbed

‘Pejoajes speay jo swaped Aeids pue suoge|nojeo s asuibua s teubjsep ey 0} 199IgNs aq | Spesy Jopuuds Jo LUORED0| PUB JaquInU aspaud ely]
"HodaJ sy} U sBumesp au L papnjoul uogaas (enidA} oy se Buglemp toea Ul sBujiso asiey mau apiaoid 0) st Jusjul InQ

"ouqe; Bupspe ey} o} eyqiesod se By e idey aq o) uonelesul el syued jepsjew syl
"speayjinq Jausod pue sbulias mou w pe|esouod pue paseq onseld aq o} yyomadid aup Joy ssodausd app

*20UN0S Je3Y o] 0] qing pesy Japjuuds ay) Bujsodxs ainjetadws)

Jomo) B Je JJO ||B} S18A00 Japjos oL uojelado Buung -uopisod ul peseplos aJB JBU) SI9A00 JUSWESIUOD UUM JeIBWEIP WS jey aABY [ esodaid speay sy
“eiqiBBau s} sy sbeyosip ejuapioy “ySU SIY) SONPal 0} SUOP aq UED Jey) SR S| aiay) pue sbewep snopijeL o Joelqns ale speay Japjuuds Iy

-Jos dwind ay} o} pauinbes ag pnom Ajddns Jemod pejeoipep v

“Japuuds Aue je (wig) Jeq G0 JO WNWUILW — 8inssald

ulwy 891 = yoee wy| zi © Asnosusynwis Bunelado speay # - MO

“s{aAe| Jsow Jaddn sy yoeas o} ueuusleMm AU WoJ ainssaud ajqe|ieA. Jo yoe| ay o) anp pannbai Bugsoog

salhsseld B mo|d

"7102:1S26SE uo paseq ubisag

EJopISUOD WiG|5AS JOPJUIITS )

uopeJepisuo) ubjseq pejeleqg

soweyog Jopjuudsg jioaiey
uopuo- jo 319

Page 101



s3rvi00ssy annoAw eaung YWAH
ze o Lz abed

(juewiannbe Sg) ‘10L4U0S 8y Aq peuLIa}ep eq [l SuCHSod NeL pue SIapuLds Jo Jaquinu ) Buipnjou uisap [euy eUL N

(sjusweunbal pyepue)s Suuepus) oD uo spuadop)
-sieeqsul 1Syjeads Jepjupds [EnUSPISal “ON G W01 SJ8pUS) ayAul em jeuy) pesodaid sy 'peecaid som eu pinous ubisep no Bupmoijod

$89204( Jepua]

saweyos Jopjuuds jjonsy
uopuo- jo A

Page 102



SANADOSSY anNnoA s HIung FAY

ZE 10 7z abe4

| 00088'093 | 0000083 |  0000v'2Z3 0003 oN ON 00°08v°0093 | 00¥50'S3 | 0z, | 9snoH 5.E<=36._

- i e)e)sy eue] :o_u,_wwA

" 00'89L'/€53 | 00°008°9¢3 00 009°EEF 000023 ON oN 00'896'VO¥3 | 0073053 | 26 JomoL 120omad |

B . N 812353 X0Se|PPIN i

00'960'1E¥3 | 00009623 | 00009923 00°0063 ON ON 00°966'€/E3 | 00VS0S3 | L Jema] jseq |

00'960'LE¥3 | 00009 623 00009923 000063 ON oN 00'966°€/E3 | 0045053 | VL JoM0] [enua)

00'960'LEV3 | 00009623 00009°923 000063 ON ON 00966 €2€3 | 00¥S0GF | vL 1oMO0] 159N

8)B}JS3 J|EPUOAY |

00¥69°1853 | 0003 0003 00002023 N SIBYSOA | 00'¥66'0993 | 00%G0G3 | il JBMO [[BMLIID

00'¥9.'8093 0003 0003 00°005'ZZ3 SOA ~ ®ByseA | 00¥9Z 9893 | 00¥S0ST | 9L Jomo] Jeadsayeys |

' 00BI8€L9F | 0003 0003 00005223 =7 S|eySeA | 00'8LE 16S3 | 00 ¥S0'S3 | Z1L 19MO0] efepapneT

) o uedjqueq |

~ 00v3 W/ 0013 yoee 00E3 _
1) YoBS | UOREINSU [ULBUL | O} [oAS] GAOQE 0095053

. IvioL - uumy Bupxoq [euoRippy Yauelq | Jojessued |uuelyeny| [Eiol | Yoee | @By | YoO[q oMol |

depjundg Yoee 0} ANd | Agqpueyg 390D | JOON |

G6GZ plojswieid

pISHE 0} J8pua) 1soyBuy L U paseq }s09 Je)y

sewayog Japjupds Jyosey
uopuo- jo A)19

joays peaids )09 ssapjuuds 09

Page 103



sawmossyannoafmune WAH
zew ez obed

SONIMVAA HOLINS

sowayos Jopjuudsg 3jos1ay
uopuo jo A1

Page 104



EVELRS

e SENINIS ATNO NOLLVWHOANI HO4 S1I
VSOJOYJ/NY1d YOO H TVOIdAL *LNOAVT LVENOY 3NML
%ﬁu%%ﬁxﬂ%% V INISTJTY LON S300 HOLING SIHL
- _| e - [ a
vd 7 IVid 7 IV IVH
o o
ala S
7 _m m m _ Ln 7 n —
I#*| e S ——— === rEeTl b el
4 A 4 A A ihﬁ% (O nuo3snay
7 o
SUMIS [ Ag801 Agacn Agao ﬁ_ suvis
v Ao _ v 7 A
| T
_
_ 3¥I53 IV _
¥y 1¥H e IV

UZSRIETDINGS WAL &

AMING NV AETDINICS TYOIAL «

OVEH TVM IS WOldAL 4




V0SS =
ISRINTDNKS VORAL @
AULNEI NIVIY ETDINAS TMOIdAL «

OV TMM IS TYOWAL A

EIRIEL RS
TVSOdOU/LNOAYT LV H TvOIdAL
3SNOH HNHLEY VRO
J1VIST INVINIQ109

ATNO NOLLYWHO4N! HOd Sl
*1NOAVT ALVHNOOV ANl
¥ IN3STudTd LON §300 HOLDIS SIHL

Page 106




VIS -=——
HEOR METDINGS WAL @

AMLLNE NIV MTDINIdS TVOldAL @

OV3H TRM 30IS TvDldAL

e

EELRS
WSOdOU/NYId HOG T4 TWOIdAL
HWHMOL ITYAI3ANYT
AUV1ST NvolguvE

1¥H .|-+ |
e T g e
| 141 M\ .. 7 A & ,b
]

AVMUIVLS

| T f

:|_| = ™

(TvDIdAL) 200N 3avDsT

ATNO NOLLYWHOSN! 404 S
*LNOAYT AEVHNDOV 3L
V IN3ST¥4T LON S300 HOLINS SIHL

Page 107




IVSOdOUd/LNOAVT V1 TWOIdAL

HIMOL TIHMNOHD

A1V1$3 NvOIGvE

INDE -
WESRNETDRNGS WOAL @
ARLLAE] NIV AETDINGS WAL e

OvEH TIVA IS TVOiAL

AINO NOLLYIWHOANI 304 S1I
*INOAVT ALVANDDY 3Nl
v INISTdTY LON S300 HOLINS SHL

Page 108




dvs =
YIS UTDRNIGS WAL &

AMLNT NIV SETDINS TWOAL «

QvaH TIM 088 TvaldAl 4,

EITEL S

WSOdOUd/NVId MO0 TWIIdAL

YIMOL 1SaM
ALVLSI TTVANOAY

e.gm.s[
. 4 v
T 7 I T Ly
| ol ||
TWIRLOTH !
e
Ak I8 L (Cfanvo asnen
1N e
W _ _ Ve
¢ s |

ATNO NOLLYWHOANI 404 S
"LNOAVT ALVHNOOY ANYL
V IN3S3Ud3 10N $300 HOLTHS StHL

Page 109




IEIEL 2
TWSOdOUA/LNOAV LIVH T¥OIdAL
H3IMOL 1SIM
1VIS3 TIVANOAY

SR DN VAL @

OVH TIVM 30IS TYOldAL &,

ATNO NOLLYWHO-NI 804 S1I
*1NOAVT ALVHNIDY IMIL
¥ INZSTHJTY LON S304 HOLINS SIHL

Page 110




(SN TVOS ATNO NOILYWHOLNI Y04 S11

HIAMOL ._..H_<Mw_om_..__u_m“_<o_n_>._. "LNOAVT 2LVHND0V INML
JIVIST YASTKAN- ¥V INJSTHdTY LON $30d HOLIXS SIHL

WH - _

AYMRIVIS

3dYI5T -
3SR HTDINKE WOAL &

RHINT NIV HTDINAS TOIAL «

OVSH TIVA 303 WAL

[P—

Page 111




['g1TN IS

TWSOdOUd/LNOAVT LV1d TWOldAL

HIMOL LVOOLLLSd
d1VLS3 X3ST TN

ARGRI NTDINE TVOKIAL @
AMING NIV ETDINIGS WOIdAL «

OV TRMIES WOldAL &

ATINO NOLLYWHO-NI ¥Od S
"LNOAYT UVANSOV SNAL
¥ IN3$THdTH LON 8300 HOLDIS SIHL

Page 112



ATNO NOLLYWHOCNI ¥04 S
"LNOAYT ALVENOOV INYL
V IN3SZed= 1ON S300 HOLS SIHL

TWS0dO¥d HOARXOD ONITIAMA 40
NOLLD3S TIAITHOIH TWOldAL

HOORMCD

Page 113



Page 114



Sprinkler Systems in Residential Flats

The Corporate Fire Safety Advisor has provided the following advice to Housing:

¢ All relevant heaith and safety legislation and Buliding Regulations are to be complied with.
Current regulations in England mean that only buildings constructed since 2007 and which
are taller than 30 metres are required to have sprinklers fitted. This requirement was not
retrospective and therefore, under the law, existing high rises in England only need to have
sprinkler systems fitted if a fundamental change is made to the structure or use of the
building.

o The retrofitting of sprinkler systems in blocks of flats should be undertaken when an
assessment of the structural capacity to house such a system and a fire risk assessment
that considers both the fire evacuation strategy and other fire precautions supports such
action. Post Grenfell Housing have commissioned fire engineering consultants to reassess
the fire risks and existing fire protection measures at all blocks of flats and sheltered
accommodation with communal areas. The assessments have also challenged the fire
evacuation strategy at each site. It should be noted that lessee rights, heritage/planning
considerations may similarly influence any retro fitting of sprinkler systems.

* Evidence shows that while sprlnkler§ are primarily intended to contain or control fires,
they can aiso be Instrumental in saving the lives of people In the room of origin of a fire.
However, sprinkler systems have capacity limitations and once multiple sprinkler heads
have activated a water storage tank would quickly empty making the system ineffective.
Some experts are of the view that if a retro sprinkler system had been fitted at Grenfell it
would have had little effect because multiple sprinkier heads would have activated emptying
tanks quickly and fact that the fire’s initial route between floors and adjacent flats was via
cladding on the outside of the building.

e Good fire compartmentation together with clear communication to all relevant
stakeholders on the evacuation strategy should be among the top priorities for Housing in
flats and sheltered accommodation. Where, so far as reasonably practicable, Housing
should also strive to exceed national standards and ensure that each flat has 60 minutes
compartmentation. Housing have arranged fire standard téstlng a range of flat front doors
to see what levels of protection they afford flat occupants.

» Housing should keep abreast of all recommendations that emerge from the post Grenfell
enquires and be prepared to evaluate the Implications and where necessary act.

¢ Standalone sprinkler systems should be ﬁtted in individual flats where it is identified as a
key Personal Emergency Evacuation Plan (PEEP) control measure.

Page 115



Page 116



Agenda Item 10

Committee: Date(s):
Residents’ Consultation Committee 21 May 2018
Barbican Residential Committee 04 June 2018
Subject: Update Report For information

Report of: Director of Community and Children's Services

Report author: Michael Bennett — Head of Barbican Estates

Public

Summary

Barbican Estate Office

1.

5.

Blake Tower (formally the YMCA) Service Charge related issues
Electric Vehicle Charging Points
Gardens Advisory Group Update — see Appendix 1 (RCC only)

Leaseholder Service Charge Working Party Update - see Appendix 2 (RCC
only)

Agenda Plan

Property Services — see appendix 3

6.

7.

8.

9.

Redecorations
Public lift availability
Concrete Repairs

Background Underfloor Heating Working Party Update

10. Asset Maintenance Working Party Update

Recommendation: that the contents of this report be noted.

Page 117



Background

This report updates members on issues raised by the Residents’ Consultation

Committee and the Barbican Residential Committee at their meetings in March 2018.

This report also provides updates on other issues on the estate.

Barbican Estate Office Issues

1. Blake Tower (formally the YMCA) Service Charge related issues

Issue

Update

Will it be managed by the BEO as part of the
Barbican Estate?

Yes.

If so, when from? Day 1 — or after a period?

After
2019).

2 years (from September

If after a period, are there any arrangements that
are different before and after the BEO takes over
management?

No Garchey or Underfloor Heating.
The Concierge Service will be
provided by the Lobby Porter for 12
hours and Estate Concierge (Car Park
Attendants) for the other 12 hours.

Where do Blake Tower residents park their cars?
Bunyan car park? Are there enough spaces?

Bunyan car park.
Yes.

Do they have ASSA keys to the gardens and the
rest of the estate?

Yes.

If so, do the ASSA keys of existing residents allow
them access to Blake Tower?

No. There is a fob system. Potentially,
Asser keys could be retro-fitted as
has been the case with Frobisher
Crescent.

When does the adjustment of estate wide service
charges to accommodate Blake Tower take
place? From day 1 or from when the BEO takes
over?

Day 1.

2. Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points (update from the Low Emission

Neighbourhood (LEN) Project Manager)

The LEN project is funding a pilot scheme to roll out EV charging points on the
Barbican Estate, with a view to determining the best strategy for the wider roll-
out of EV charging points in City of London Corporation managed car parks.

Page 118




Charging points have been installed in 30 parking bays across 5 car parks on the
Barbican Estate. A launch event took place in May and a 6-month trial will now
take place, monitoring usage and engaging with residents. The results of this
and recommendations for a future roll-out will be fed back to the Working Party
and the Barbican Residential Committee.

3. Gardens Advisory Group Update — see Appendix 1

4. Leaseholder Service Charge Working Party Update - see Appendix 2 (RCC

only)

5. Agenda Plan - Residents’ Consultation Committee & Barbican Residential

Committee
RCC .
. . . BRC Meeting
Report Title Officer Meeting
Date
Date
“You Said; We Did” Actions (Separate list 3 Sept 17 Sept

for RCC & BRC)

Michael Bennett

SLA Review

Michael Bennett

2017/18 Revenue Outturn (Excluding the
Residential Service Charge Account)

Anne
Mason/Chamberlain
S

2017/18 Revenue Outturn for the Dwellings
Charge  Account including
between the
accounts and the final service charge

Service

Reconciliation closed

Chamberlains

Relationship of BRC Outturn Report to

. Anne Mason
Service Charge Schedules — RCC Only
Progress of Sales & Lettings Anne Mason
Arrears Report (BRC Only) Anne Mason

Update Report:

e Main update - Blake Tower service
charge related issues/Service
Based Review/Electric Vehicle
Charging/ Gardens Advisory Group
(Appendix 1 — RCC only)/
Leaseholder Service Charge
Working Party (Appendix 2 - RCC

Michael Bennett

Page 119




only)/Agenda Plan 2018
e Property Services Update
(Appendix 3)

“You Said; We Did” Actions (Separate list | 26 Nov
Michael Bennett
for RCC & BRC)

SLA Review Michael Bennett

Service Charge Expenditure & Income
Account - Latest Approved Budget | Chamberlains
2018/19 & Original Budget 2019/20

Revenue & Capital Budgets - Latest
Approved Budget 2018/19 and Original
2019/20 - Excluding dwellings service
charge income & expenditure

Chamberlains

Annual Review of RTAs Town Clerks
Progress of Sales & Lettings Anne Mason
Arrears Report (BRC Only) Anne Mason

Update Report:

e Main update - Blake Tower service
charge related issues/Service
Based Review/Electric Vehicle
Charging/ Gardens Advisory Group
(Appendix 1 — RCC only)/ Michael Bennett
Leaseholder Service Charge
Working Party (Appendix 2 - RCC
only)/Agenda Plan 2019

e Property Services Update
(Appendix 3)

10 Dec

Background Papers:

Minutes of Residents’ Consultation Committee 05 March 2018.
Reports to the Barbican Residential Committee 19 March 2018.

Contact: Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates
Tel: 020 7029 3923
E:mail: barbican.estate@cityoflondon.qgov.uk

Page 120



mailto:barbican.estate@cityoflondon.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1
GAG Meeting held 17 April 2018 — report for RCC

Keeping residents better informed about the GAG activities is vital — and playing an
important role in this is the new BEO Communications Officer Nabeela Ahmad who
says she’s researching different ways to do this as not all residents are on line.

While the150 notice boards in the different blocks are important for hard copy
information, members noted that a lot of the notices are regularly out of date — block
cleaners are to be briefed to ensure old notices are removed.

Discussing ways of informing residents more widely of GAG activities, House Groups
are to be asked to circulate info within blocks and to ask HG reps at RCC how they
would like GAG to communicate with them. Sessions are also to be organised to
Meet the Gardeners in different areas around the estate. The first one to be TM
area.

The new bird hide in the Wildlife Garden had a well attended launch and is being well
used; 52 species of wildlife (not just birds) have been seen.

Barbican Horticultural Society membership is about 70 flats out of 2000 on the
estate. The May meeting, with a presentation from the RHS’ official orchid painter,
will be publicised in the Bulletin and sent to House Groups.

An allotments inspection revealed that very few were looking good — with some
completely unplanted while others were weed-ridden, A meeting of all plot holders is
being arranged as all have signed a contract with BEO to maintain their plots.
Members wanted contracts enforced, with plots re-allocated to people on the waiting
list if holders do not comply.

Inspections: Three large planters in Brandon Mews badly affected by vine weevil . In

the Sculpture Court repairs were need to the wooden planters. It was noted the area
lacked a central focal point — perhaps a circular seat or sculpture?

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



APPENDIX 2
Leaseholders Service Charge Working Party

Report to RCC May 2018

Members

Anne Mason - Chair (BEO), Michael Bennett (BEO), Helen Davinson (BEO), Jim
Davies (Deputy Chair of RCC), Helen Wilkinson, Mary Gilchrist, Jane Northcote,
Phillip Burgess, David Lawrence, David Graves

Meeting - 30 April 2018

Background

The LSCWP had at its previous meeting set three objectives regarding service
charges.

Objective 1 - to build a database of service charge data

Objective 2 — to improve communications with leaseholders in order to provide a
better understanding of service charge.

Objective 3 — to identify areas for improvements in value for money and formulate
KPlIs to improve value for money focussing on underfloor

The main discussions at this meeting were on the second and third objectives.
Improving Communications with Leaseholders

Four blocks (Lauderdale, Andrewes, Mountjoy and Speed) have been chosen to
receive the trial service charge letter for the 2018/19 estimates.

The letter provides more information on the variances from the previous year’s
estimate and an additional schedule is included showing the comparison with the
2016/17 actuals.

Leaseholders in the trial blocks will be invited to comment on the new letter and a list
of frequently asked questions will be compiled.

Underfloor Heating KPI

There was a discussion on the possible KPI but it was agreed that a discussion with
the Underfloor Heating Working Party was needed before this could be finalised.

Page 123



Further Work

The allocation of Supervision and Management charges across blocks was
discussed. The current allocation is based on the cost of works to a block compared
with the cost of services overall. This can mean that there are significant fluctuations
from year to year. An alternative method may reduce this and be easier for
leaseholders to understand.

The working party wanted to have a better understanding of the composition of the
charge and there will be further discussions at the next meeting.

There was also a discussion on procurement processes and this will be looked at in
more detail at future meetings.

Page 124



Property Services Update Appendix 3

6. Redecorations
Works continue to progress well on the 2018/19 programme
At the time of this report (25 April 2018)
e Thomas More House — Due to complete in May 2018
e Mountjoy House — Due to complete in May 2018

e The Postern - Due to commence in June 2018

Feedback from residents on the performance of the contractor and quality of work continues to
remain positive.

7. Public Lift Availability

Availability of the public lifts under the control of Property Services is detailed below:

Lift From April 2016 to March From April 2017 to March
2017 2018

Turret (Thomas More) 99.95% 99.90%

Gilbert House 99.96% 99.99%

8. Concrete Repairs

Concrete repairs are due to start in June 2018. Residents will be informed of the
programme as soon as it is available.

9. Background Underfloor Heating Working Party Update

The Underfloor Heating Working Party met on 5" April chaired by Mary Durcan. The Terms
of Reference were agreed and a number of objectives were set. A sub Group of resident
members was to be formed with a view to meet with the City’s Energy Manager to discuss
and progress the Demand Side Response opportunity.

The group will formally meet each quarter but it is understood that a number of adhoc
meetings will take place, mainly led by the resident representatives.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 'YOU SAID; WE DID' - Outstanding Actions List
	5 Progress of Sales and Lettings
	RIGHT TO BUY SALES
	3.
	OPEN MARKET SALES
	4.

	6 SLA Review
	slA UPDATE - appendices
	Cus Care
	Est Mgmt
	R&M
	Maj Works
	O Spaces
	KPIS


	8 Car Park Charging Policy
	car park charges - apx 1
	car park charges - apx 2
	car park charges - apx 3
	car park charges - apx 4
	car park charges - apx 5

	9 Fire Safety Update
	10 Update Report
	RCC UPDATE REPORT - APX 1 - GAG WORKING PARTY
	RCC UPDATE REPORT - APX 2 - LEASEHOLDERS SERVICE CHARGE WP
	RCC UPDATE REPORT - APX 3 - PROPERTY SERVICES UPDATE


